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          2  accept on faith that ventilation is going to cure

          3  this problem.

          4                 Well, this isn't a faith-based

          5  business. This isn't religion, this is science,

          6  okay? In God we trust, all others must provide data.

          7  It can't be done.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. I think

          9  that's a line you'll hear probably used over and

         10  over again by the Council members who are here on an

         11  array of different matters. It's a good one.

         12                 Council Member Koppell.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes. Ms.

         14  Charlesworth, the studies you did on the effect on

         15  tourism, could we get copies of those studies?

         16                 MS. CHARLESWORTH: Yes, I brought

         17  copies with me.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And maybe the

         19  Committee can make copies for the members?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes, absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Just for

         22  point of disclosure, how did you come to come to

         23  this hearing?

         24                 MS. CHARLESWORTH: I was invited by

         25  the Department of Health and Hygiene.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

          3                 I'd like to see copies of the study.

          4                 MS. CHARLESWORTH: Sure. They're right

          5  here.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: A member of staff

          7  to the Health Committee will see you. Great. Thank

          8  you very much. And we'll make copies for everyone

          9  and put them in your mailboxes.

         10                 Thank you all very much.

         11                 Next we're going to hear from Robert

         12  Bookman, David Rabin, David McWater and John Blair.

         13  And they'll be followed by a separate panel, by

         14  Harold Friedman, Paul McIntire, Jimmy Rodriguez,

         15  Cindy Erickson and the representative from Local

         16  802.

         17                 Now, when I saw David on New York 1

         18  the other night, he should have been bleeped, but

         19  they weren't quick enough on the bleep, so --

         20                 MR. McWATER: I'll try to do better

         21  today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Only funnier than

         23  that was you turned pinker than your badge. It was

         24  very funny actually.

         25                 But whoever would like to go first,
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          2  we'll set the clock.

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: I'll go first. My name

          4  is Robert Bookman, I'm Counsel to the New York

          5  Nightlife Association and a partner in the law firm

          6  of Pezetski and Bookman. One of the distressing

          7  parts about coming so late in the day is there's so

          8  much things that you want to respond to, it's hard

          9  to really get all the points in, and talk really

         10  fast like some of the people did and I couldn't

         11  understand a word they were saying.

         12                 So, I'll get what I can get in, and

         13  we'll hopefully have more opportunities to explore

         14  some of these issues.

         15                 We're concerned that we need to be

         16  honest with the public, Council people about this

         17  debate, and we should stop mixing together the

         18  issues and the statistics of primary smoking with

         19  exposure to secondhand smoke, and much of the stuff

         20  that we heard today was a real mishmosh of the two.

         21                 We should also be clear what the

         22  legislation before the City Council is and is not

         23  about. It is not a law to ban secondhand smoke. It's

         24  far from it. According to the federal government

         25  studies that have been so religiously mentioned here
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          2  today, the most common and dangerous exposure to

          3  secondhand smoke comes at home where there is daily

          4  exposure over 20 to 30 years. This proposed law says

          5  nothing about the source of unhealthy air, which

          6  according to the EPA is responsible for virtually

          7  all the statistics concerning illness by secondhand

          8  smoke.

          9                 If 1,000 New Yorkers were dying every

         10  year from secondhand smoke, by the way, that would

         11  account for one-third of the entire national amount,

         12  according to the EPA 3,000 a year, and City Council

         13  put that in its finding in its 1995 law, but if

         14  1,000 New Yorkers are dying every year from

         15  secondhand smoke and over 85 percent of the current

         16  workforce has been protected since 1995, where are

         17  all these deaths coming from? If our owners and

         18  employees were dropping like flies, we certainly

         19  would know about it.

         20                 If this statistic is accurate, and

         21  after today I'm convinced that it is not, then it

         22  must be due to exposure from smoke at home, which,

         23  again, this bill is not addressing.

         24                 The battle really is over one small

         25  exception carved out in the 1995 law, that being
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          2  bars and nightclubs. I don't think there's much

          3  argument here about small office spaces, about even

          4  small restaurants, about bowling allies and private

          5  cars and City cars, and if you add all that stuff up

          6  together, that there's really no opposition here

          7  from today, over 99 percent of the City's workforce

          8  would be protected from no smoking laws.

          9                 The number of employees that work

         10  just in bars and clubs Citywide is less than one

         11  percent, you know, of the City's workforce.

         12                 Now, the prior Council particularly

         13  carved out that extension because they recognized

         14  that bars are different than restaurants. People

         15  come to stay for a shorter period of time at bars

         16  than they do at restaurants. At bars they hang out

         17  for the evening. There is an expectation from

         18  patrons and employees who choose to work there that

         19  is the smoking environment, there are no surprises.

         20                 As to the health issue at bars, the

         21  amount of exposure to secondhand smoke required by

         22  the federal studies to be dangerous, which is daily

         23  exposure over decades, simply does not exist with

         24  bar and club employees.

         25                 Industry statistics demonstrate that
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          2  most bar and club employees work three to four

          3  shifts per week, and generally work in this industry

          4  for less than five years.

          5                 Moreover, 60 percent of our workers

          6  are smokers themselves, so secondhand smoke is

          7  hardly a concern.

          8                 As to the economic issues, I think

          9  George Wachtel who literally came late and ran in

         10  here, I don't think everybody heard clearly what he

         11  said. We don't have to extrapolate to California,

         12  and we don't have to look at restaurants, we now

         13  have hard New York City data collected by an

         14  unassailable source as recent as last week showing

         15  that there will be a significant loss to business at

         16  bars and clubs and a huge impact on the sidewalks if

         17  this is passed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you wrap up,

         19  Mr. Bookman, please?

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: I will wrap up. So we

         21  don't need to extrapolate. I mean, I have a letter

         22  from a New York City bar owner also from Tempe,

         23  Arizona, where they are repealing the law that they

         24  did there because the impact was so negative.

         25                 We need to look at some of these
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          2  statistics a little more carefully. I think the

          3  Council needs to do more due diligence. Simply

          4  because somebody says it doesn't make it so, and I

          5  look forward to discussing it further with you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 I just want you to know, we did ask

          8  Mr. Wachtel for his information. He gave it to the

          9  Committee. We'll make that data available to all of

         10  the members of the Council, whether they're on the

         11  Health Committee or not. And is the fourth member of

         12  your panel here?

         13                 MR. BOOKMAN: No.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: A number of people left.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. No, that's

         17  fine. I just didn't know if perhaps he didn't hear

         18  his name called.

         19                 Whoever would like to go next.

         20                 MR. RABIN: Good evening. My name is

         21  David Rabin. I'm co-owner of Lotus and Union Bar. I

         22  am the President of the New York Nightlife

         23  Association. I am a lifelong non-smoker. I also work

         24  four or more shifts per week in my establishment. I

         25  also have no affiliation with any tobacco companies.
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          2  I'm here of my own volition and for my industry.

          3                 I'm sorry that so many Council

          4  members have already left. It doesn't make me too

          5  happy to hear statistics even mentioned by, I

          6  believe a gentleman from the leukemia society that

          7  only seven out of ten of my customers are going to

          8  still come to Lotus once we've passed this law. That

          9  doesn't help me very much.

         10                 Well, I think the Mayor's intention

         11  is laudable. I don't think it's well thought

         12  through. I think the quality of life in New York is

         13  going to be greatly diminished by this law, as it

         14  applies to bars and clubs.

         15                 I believe the streets are going to

         16  become a social scene. I don't know why anyone would

         17  go back inside on a 60 or 70 degree night when they

         18  can stand in the street, have a cigarette, maybe buy

         19  a beer from the deli down the corn and talk to a

         20  pretty girl from a bar across the street. There's

         21  going to be intermingling of clientele from

         22  different establishments, no reason to go in.

         23                 I heard the Mayor say that NYPD is

         24  going to enforce this law. They're not even

         25  enforcing the cabaret law right now. Go to Lafayette
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          2  Street on any Wednesday night and tell me who is

          3  enforcing the caberet law? Now they're going to

          4  enforce the noise law? I don't think so.

          5                 The analogies to other areas are so

          6  poorly thought out, it's hard for me to believe

          7  people are making them. This is not Nassau, this is

          8  not Westchester, this is not Suffolk County. I grew

          9  up in Nassau County. Our bars were in malls and next

         10  to the railroad station.

         11                 In California they've carved out

         12  smoking patios. Their bars are not near residences,

         13  and their drinking hour ends at 1:45 a.m., not 4:00

         14  a.m. So, people are not drinking as late in

         15  California and they're not in residential

         16  neighborhoods.

         17                 We can't avail ourselves to the

         18  police, because we face a catch-22. If I call the

         19  police and ask them to help me disperse a crowd, I

         20  face a summons for disorderly premise. So, I will

         21  never the police to help me disperse a crowd,

         22  because it will go against my liquor license and

         23  then I won't be able to get a renewal because my

         24  community board is going to say you have 40

         25  disorderly premises. Well, there you go, I'm never
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          2  going to call the police. I'm going to leave those

          3  people in the street all night long.

          4                 As for the economic impact studies

          5  that I've been hearing everyone cite, I didn't hear

          6  anyone cite the fact that they happen to all

          7  coincide with probably the greatest business boom in

          8  decades in our country, if not in the entire history

          9  of our country from 1995 to 2001. You know, the

         10  exact coincide with the entire burst of activity in

         11  hi-tech and the stock market. There's no demand from

         12  any of my 140 employees for this law. I've been in

         13  business 12 years, I've never had one person say

         14  they had to go to the hospital for smoke inhalation.

         15  I've owned bars in Moscow, in Las Vegas and in New

         16  York and I've never -- and if you think they smoke

         17  in New York, go to Moscow, and I've never had anyone

         18  have that complaint. They work in our places because

         19  they can earn a great deal of money in a short

         20  amount of time, which is what they want. They're not

         21  disadvantaged, they've made a choice. They want to

         22  make big bucks in quick time.

         23                 There's no demand from the public. If

         24  the public demanded this type of business, someone

         25  would have built one of these places, or even done a
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          2  smoking night. There's no smoking nights, there's

          3  gay nights, there's salsa nights but there certainly

          4  is not a no smoking night in any bar or club in New

          5  York because there's no demand. And if the Mayor

          6  thinks there's demand, I think that should be his

          7  next business venture. Let him open a non-smoking

          8  nightclub and see if ten people show up.

          9                 I think you're looking at a disaster

         10  for security at nightclubs, because people are going

         11  to go in and out all night. We're talking about

         12  hundreds of people leaving and having to be

         13  re-entered all night. I think there's a tremendous

         14  amount of naivete that I've heard tonight about the

         15  impact this is going to cause on business and

         16  employees, and the truth is, the real truth is, your

         17  offices as Council people are going to be deluged,

         18  in my opinion, by community complaints next year,

         19  and you're going to come to me as the head of the

         20  New York Nightlife Association and you're going to

         21  say help me with the street noise, and I'm going to

         22  say I told you so, that this is what's going to

         23  happen. They're going to be in the streets all

         24  night. And I can't stop them, and I'll never call

         25  the police.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          3                 David.

          4                 MR. McWATER: Yes. My name is David

          5  McWater. I own five small taverns and restaurants in

          6  the Lower East Side.  I'm also a member of the local

          7  community board there, Community Board 3, which

          8  recently passed a resolution overwhelmingly opposing

          9  this bill.

         10                 One of the myths I wanted to discuss

         11  real quickly is that this bill is the stop smoking

         12  in bars and clubs bill. It's not, it's to stop

         13  smoking in tons of workplaces.

         14                 The reason we're discussing bars and

         15  clubs here is because they're the obvious exception.

         16                 As a member of CB 3, 95 percent of

         17  all the complaints we get about bars and clubs are

         18  noise-related.

         19                 According to our poll, 52 percent of

         20  the smokers, which come up to almost half of our

         21  customers, 52 percent say they'll go outside to

         22  smoke. The smallest bars in New York City have an

         23  occupancy of 74 people. If 37 of them are smoking

         24  and 52 percent are going outside, you've got 20

         25  people outside in front of every bar, standing
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          2  underneath somebody's bedroom window smoking,

          3  talking for who knows how long. There's no real

          4  impetus to come back, the scene has moved outside.

          5  They're going to attract panhandlers, they're going

          6  to attract drug dealers, they're going to attract

          7  all kinds of street problems that will be drawn to

          8  them, which we have worked very hard, especially in

          9  my neighborhood, to try to get rid of.

         10                 So, I think the fact is New York is

         11  not LA. We don't have that real estate here to put

         12  places for people. I don't have a parking lot for

         13  people to go smoke in. The only place in the world

         14  they can go is on the sidewalk. Now, if you want to

         15  ban smoking on the sidewalks, then I think you've

         16  got a great deal here also. But right now what

         17  you're saying is that we either have to close down

         18  or let all these people smoke on the sidewalk.

         19                 I also want to sort of dispel a myth

         20  about who these people are that's being helped by

         21  this law.

         22                 One thing, the bar and club industry

         23  is very labor non-intensive. I probably have one

         24  employee per 50 customers. So there are very few

         25  people this is actually happening.
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          2                 Second of all, with all respect to

          3  Sidney's eye on the day of the 80-year-old bartender

          4  is over. Most of these people are the stereotypical

          5  actor, model, what have you. Of my 37 people that

          6  would be affected by this law, only two are over the

          7  age of 30, and only one of them is as old as I am,

          8  and I'm just 36. These are not people that are

          9  working for 40 or 50 years in this environment,

         10  they're working three, four years until they get a

         11  foothold into something else.

         12                 Also of my 37 people to be affected

         13  by this, 25 are smokers. There's a large percentage

         14  of people in this industry that are already smokers.

         15                 My final comment on who this will

         16  affect is that there is a hierarchy in the service

         17  industry and bartenders are at the apex of it. If

         18  they wanted to work in a smoke-free environment,

         19  they could go be a waiter or a waitress right now.

         20                 They choose to be a bartender, many

         21  of them because they are smokers, and all of them

         22  because the added income to them offsets the health

         23  hazards that they are aware that they are submitting

         24  themselves to.

         25                 Thank you very much.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            216

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Does

          3  anyone have any questions for this panel?

          4                 Council Member Oddo and then Council

          5  Member Stewart.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: David, let me

          7  just say that I am envious because I've always

          8  wanted to use that phrase on New York 1 --

          9                 MR. McWATER: Oxymoronic?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I wanted --

         11                 MR. McWATER: Oxymoronic or the other

         12  one?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes, the other

         14  one.

         15                 In fact, I wanted to us it in this

         16  Chambers. I won't say I wanted to use it today, but

         17  it was an enjoyable moment.

         18                 So, Mr. Bookman, this is my problem,

         19  and I thank you for your testimony, I appreciate all

         20  three of you, I think you made some valid points

         21  that we have to address. And this doesn't speak to

         22  you personally, but I think there's a little bit of

         23  a credibility problem here on behalf of the

         24  opponents of this legislation.

         25                 When this body starting passing
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          2  anti-tobacco legislation, if you will, in the early

          3  nineties, there were moans and groans.

          4                 When we passed the first bill in '95,

          5  it was doom and gloom and people have alluded to

          6  that. When we introduced legislation to increase the

          7  fines on merchants who sell tobacco illegally to

          8  minors, people said you're going to put small

          9  businesses out of business. When we then introduced

         10  the legislation to ban tobacco advertising near

         11  schools, people said, well, pass the bill that would

         12  increase the fines, just pick on the bad apples.

         13  When I introduced my bill that didn't go nearly as

         14  far as this bill, my bill spoke only to dining

         15  areas, not even to the bar areas of restaurants, my

         16  bill said the 34 number was completely arbitrary,

         17  let's get rid of it. The restaurant industry said,

         18  oh, my God, doom and gloom, post editorial went

         19  crazy. Now we come with another bill and we hear

         20  testimony, well, the '95 bill was great, Oddo's

         21  bill, we'll take smaller restaurants, let's include

         22  that, and it seems that there's a credibility gap.

         23                 So, when we hear testimony about

         24  tourism is going to fall off and people are going to

         25  bypass the opportunity to see the Statue of Liberty
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          2  in a greatwide way, and New Yorkers, they're going

          3  to go to Weehawken because they could smoke, there's

          4  a credibility issue here. So, you have to sort of

          5  overcome that.

          6                 MR. BOOKMAN: Okay, fair enough. For

          7  those of you who know me, and my practice, I think

          8  will agree from my assemblyman here, who I had many

          9  years, to the Chair of this Committee, there is no

         10  credibility gap with this attorney. We'll tell it

         11  like it is, and maybe we'll agree sometimes and

         12  maybe we won't and I appreciate that. This is our

         13  first time here in this industry, because we were

         14  not part of the bills in '95, we were not part of

         15  these other, you know, prior legislation, because

         16  consistently and historically 100 percent of the

         17  time there was a recognition that bars are different

         18  than restaurants. And if the restaurant people cried

         19  wolf too many times, I don't want to be the one who

         20  is punished with that, and I explain that to my kids

         21  all the time, you know? But I don't want my oldest

         22  to be punished because the youngest is crying wolf

         23  all the time. And all I have to tell you is we need

         24  to look carefully at the numbers of George Wachtel,

         25  which is why we hired somebody who is completely
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          2  unassailable, who has done the studies for Broadway,

          3  who is a member of the Board of NYC and Company,

          4  because we didn't want a credibility problem with

          5  this surveys, and we didn't know what the numbers

          6  were going to bring. You know, whatever George came

          7  up with, that's what he's going to come up with. His

          8  numbers are startling. You know, a two percent

          9  reduction in business in this economic climate would

         10  be a problem, a 30 percent reduction in bar business

         11  would be unbelievable.

         12                 So, we need to look carefully at

         13  that. I don't want to be painted with the prior cry

         14  wolf, bars are different.

         15                 And, again, while it was mentioned,

         16  it deserves repeating, we were in the middle in the

         17  last three years of the most giant economic

         18  expansion in the history of this country. That is

         19  not happening now, and it's especially not happening

         20  in New York City.

         21                 Even if it's a tie, Councilman Oddo,

         22  even if you're saying Bookman is making some sense

         23  or at least as in his aspect of the industry, but

         24  we've heard these arguments before. In this climate

         25  the tie needs to go to the business people for now,
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          2  because God forbid we're right, then we lose a

          3  significant industry that employes a few thousand

          4  people but pays hundreds of millions of dollars --

          5  the bar and club scene of New York, the live music

          6  clubs, the dance clubs, it's a huge part of what

          7  makes New York important, both from a cultural

          8  economic and a social point of view. It's a small

          9  segment. We need to see if we can address the very

         10  real issues of this very one small segment, while

         11  still working together with the Mayor to broaden the

         12  protection.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The Chair is

         14  indulging me.

         15                 But let me ask you this, Mr. Bookman:

         16  Where are these people going to go? Is the guy going

         17  to stay home with his carton of Marlboro and a

         18  bottle of Jack Daniels?

         19                 MR. BOOKMAN: Some are. You bet some

         20  are.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I find that hard

         22  to believe. Isn't part of nightlife, I mean getting

         23  out, getting from the hustle and bustle of the job

         24  or home and getting out? I have a tough time. I

         25  understand, I think the concerns are legitimate of
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          2  small business people. I'm not saying that they're

          3  out of hand, but where are these people going to go?

          4  They're staying home?

          5                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, I think we both

          6  want to answer that.

          7                 A percentage will, nine, ten percent

          8  in the study said yes that's exactly what they're

          9  going to do. The more startling number is the 20

         10  percent of our patrons who simply said if I can't

         11  smoke, I'm going to spend less time. Less time means

         12  fewer tips, less time means less drinks being

         13  bought, less time means there is a marginal

         14  reduction in income.

         15                 I can't tell you what that marginal

         16  reduction will be from the 20 percent of our

         17  clientele who just in the last week said they'll

         18  spend less time. But it's going to be a combination

         19  of all of those things.

         20                 David.

         21                 MR. McWATER: I just want to say also

         22  that 52 percent of the people that go out side,

         23  there's no product that can serve them while they're

         24  outside. All of the time outside is now just lost

         25  time.
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          2                 MR. BOOKMAN: And contrary to what the

          3  Mayor said, I knew there was one more thing I had to

          4  get in, it is not against the law to smoke out on

          5  the street, and it is not against the law to stay

          6  outside and talk with people, you know, late at

          7  night and use your cell phones, there are no laws

          8  that the City can enforce against those people.

          9  They're not violating anything. If they're being

         10  rowdy that's different, but simply being outside,

         11  you know, the loitering laws were found

         12  unconstitutional decades ago on the homeless issue.

         13  The Mayor is quite mistaken, you know, perhaps, you

         14  know, on Fifth Avenue people aren't allowed to

         15  loiter, but in the rest of the City it is not

         16  against the law to be outside, you know, with your

         17  friend, smoke, speak on the cell phone, and at three

         18  in the morning that's going to be noisy, even if

         19  they're not trying to be noisy. It's just going to

         20  be noisy. Everything this Association stands for,

         21  for the six years that we've been in creation, is

         22  creating better relations with our neighborhood.

         23  Many of you Council people here have put our board

         24  members on community boards because we are

         25  responsible. We're not wild, you know, fanatics. You
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          2  know, we want to make peace with our neighbors.

          3                 Community board after community board

          4  is taking this issue up now, and everyone that has

          5  taken it up so far says expand the law to everybody

          6  else but not bars and clubs. It won't work.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: How many have

          8  taken it up so far?

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: We know Community Board

         10  1 in Staten Island has taken it up, Community Board

         11  -- I was just told another, Community Board 2 in

         12  Queens has taken it up, Community Board 3 in

         13  Manhattan, those that passed resolutions. Community

         14  Board 5 in Manhattan, their Quality of Life

         15  Committee voted Monday night ten to 1:00, again

         16  expanding it to bars and clubs. It hasn't gone to

         17  the full board yet.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So a couple so

         19  far.

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: But 100 percent, you

         21  know, so far of those who have taken it up.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You should give

         23  that to the Sergeant.

         24                 And, so, of the three that have taken

         25  it up, all three have said that?
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          2                 MR. BOOKMAN: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          4                 MR. BOOKMAN: Two were scheduled for

          5  the first week in November, eight the first week in

          6  November -- you know, community boards are going to

          7  take a little time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: No, no, they have

          9  a process.

         10                 MR. BOOKMAN: You need to be patient

         11  with them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         13                 MR. BOOKMAN: You know, it's going to

         14  take til the end of November or even December before

         15  you hear from all of them. But the people we've

         16  spoken to at the community boards, you know, we're

         17  not lobbying, they instinctively get it. They

         18  understand, you know. And the many of them are

         19  anti-bar, you know, I'm the first to say it. They

         20  are anti-bar and they are anti-club. What the

         21  Community Board 3 letter said to the Mayor was,

         22  don't make a bad situation worse, and that's what

         23  you're going to do.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         25                 Council Member Stewart.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair.

          4                 I want to follow through on that last

          5  statement that you made.

          6                 Do you think that if the community

          7  board was in favor of it they would send information

          8  just as those who are against?

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: The community boards, in

         10  my experience, know how to communicate with the City

         11  Council in either event.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: If it's not

         13  an issue, they won't send the information in with

         14  us, would they?

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, I don't know. I

         16  mean, I could tell you that we're going to every

         17  community board where it is an issue.

         18                 There are communities in Manhattan,

         19  there are communities in the City where this street

         20  light is not going to be an issue. I agree with you,

         21  because they don't have a large, you know,

         22  collection in a specific area of bars and clubs next

         23  to residents. So, there are some places that won't

         24  be an issue and they probably won't take it up. But,

         25  you know, we shouldn't ignore the tens of thousands
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          2  of New Yorkers that will be represented by the

          3  community boards that do take it up.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you for

          5  making that statement.

          6                 However, you said awhile ago that

          7  it's only one percent of the City workers that will

          8  be affected with secondhand smoke.

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: Yeah, and 60 percent of

         10  them are smokers.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Wait. Let me

         12  finish.

         13                 MR. BOOKMAN: Oh, I'm sorry.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, are you

         15  saying that the rights of these folks in a safe and

         16  healthy workplace doesn't count?

         17                 MR. BOOKMAN: Not at all. I'm not

         18  saying that at all.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: It's only one

         20  percent.

         21                 MR. BOOKMAN: No. No. I categorically

         22  reject the notion that in our one percent of

         23  employees that they're exposed three to four days a

         24  week, three to five years, that there is a single

         25  study that demonstrates that that limited exposure
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          2  to secondhand smoke causes serious health problems

          3  or death. I reject it, and I would like to see the

          4  study.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You also

          6  would like to see all the studies done by all the

          7  other groups, the stats and studies that show the

          8  secondhand? Are you saying that you question all

          9  those studies?

         10                 MR. BOOKMAN: No, I'm saying that

         11  those are based on daily exposure over 20 years at

         12  the home. Go make smoking illegal in the home for

         13  all the children that you don't allow to buy

         14  cigarettes, why are you allowing them to go home and

         15  be exposed to secondhand smoke seven days a week?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         17  Koppell.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The Wachtel

         19  study that you keep citing, is that based on actual

         20  experience or predictions?

         21                 MR. BOOKMAN: It is unlike everything

         22  else that you've heard today, which is

         23  extrapolations and predictions upon extrapolations,

         24  it's based on 1,046 real interviews conducted in the

         25  past week, real interviews, no extrapolation. No
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          2  margin of error.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But that's

          4  what people say they will do, but we have in

          5  California an example of what they actually did, and

          6  that seems to show something different -- assuming

          7  that you're correct that this is a relevant study,

          8  people might predict that they won't go, but maybe

          9  they actually do go then later, and that's what the

         10  California experience which is real is. The Wachtel

         11  is a prediction of what they're going to do.

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: No, Wachtel is what

         13  people are saying.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: You're saying that they

         16  could all be lying?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: They're

         18  saying what they're going to do.

         19                 MR. BOOKMAN: They're saying what

         20  they're going to do.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What they

         22  think they're going to do.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: No, they're saying what

         24  they're going to do.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But they
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          2  might do something different.

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, they might move

          4  out of New York, too, but we didn't ask that

          5  question.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But they did

          7  something different in California, right?

          8                 MR. BOOKMAN: No.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: This is going to

         10  be the final go back.

         11                 MR. BOOKMAN: I mean, I'm not an

         12  expert on California. Far from it. I've only been

         13  there a couple of times and it's enough for me.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Keep answering.

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: I'm a New Yorker, and I

         16  can tell you from what I have heard, and I haven't

         17  seen the data, but I would like to see it, and I

         18  think you need to look at it carefully, and I know

         19  you're a man of integrity going back a long time,

         20  Councilman, I'm told that that data is mixing

         21  McDonalds with restaurants with bars, and they

         22  really didn't separate out the bars and nightclubs,

         23  and if you do and you look at it, the growth in

         24  income there was much less than the entire growth of

         25  the economy during that period of time.
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          2                 So, if the economy grew ten percent

          3  during that period of year, and they were going

          4  three percent, that's a seven percent loss. That's

          5  not a positive. And what's going to happen when the

          6  economy goes down ten percent? Then let's see what

          7  happens. Let's keep the McDonalds issue out of it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, this is

          9  not a question, Madam Chair, I just want --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: No, I'm sorry,

         11  Council member.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I just want

         13  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: No, Council

         15  Member, you were given more latitude than most. I'm

         16  sorry.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I want to --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         19  Gallagher.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: -- Tell him

         21  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: No, Council

         23  member, you've had more time than I've allowed

         24  anyone else.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, I just
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          2  want to ask him and his association --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council member.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: -- To do a

          5  study, just like he just said should be done, if he

          6  can show me that in a study, I'd be interested in

          7  seeing it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          9                 Council Member Gallagher.

         10                 MR. BOOKMAN: And we're going to work

         11  on that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Robert.

         13                 Council Member Gallagher.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you,

         15  Madam Chairwoman. I'll keep my comments short

         16  because I know there are a lot of people that have

         17  to testify. But one of the things I wanted to thank

         18  David for his testimony, and I want to tell you that

         19  I live in an outerborough in Queens County, and I

         20  live on a small road, and across the street from my

         21  house is one bar, and a block away is another bar.

         22  And if you think that there are people in the

         23  communities that are not concerned about what you

         24  talked about, not only in Manhattan, but in the

         25  outer boroughs, about people who are going to be
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          2  congregating outside two, three o'clock in the

          3  morning, and creating a disturbance in the quality

          4  of life, that is a number -- I spoke to a lot of my

          5  colleagues and they are very concerned about that

          6  issue.

          7                 And I also wanted to thank you for

          8  bringing up the point, because I was planning on

          9  doing it. That we've heard testimony from many

         10  people today concerning hotel reservations, and

         11  tourism is up during this time period. While in New

         12  York we went through a significant crime reduction,

         13  and there was a tremendous economic boom in the late

         14  nineties, and in addition to that, our hotels here

         15  do have smoke-free rooms. And I think that maybe one

         16  of the reasons why that's not included in this

         17  legislation, banning on hotel rooms, is because I

         18  think people realize that there will be a tremendous

         19  economic burden and people would not come here into

         20  the City and may go elsewhere in order to smoke in

         21  their hotel room.

         22                 So, I really don't really have a

         23  question, but I wanted to thank you for your

         24  testimony, because I think that you really put

         25  forward a lot of what many of my colleagues are
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          2  concerned about, some of whom aren't here, and I

          3  think it's important that you share your testimony

          4  in writing with them so that they have an

          5  opportunity to hear it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We're going to

          9  hear from the next panel, which is Harold Freeman,

         10  Paul McIntire, Jimmy Rodriguez, Cindy Erikson and

         11  the representative from Local 802.

         12                 They're going to be followed by a

         13  panel, Joe Bossolina, Robert Shepard, Si Grayson and

         14  Neal Cole.

         15                 Whoever would like to go first, just

         16  identify yourself for the record.

         17                 DR. FREEMAN: I'm Dr. Harold Freeman.

         18  I am past President of the American Cancer Society,

         19  and former Chairman of the New York State Commission

         20  on Smoking or Health.

         21                 I'm currently a member of the

         22  President's Cancer Panel.

         23                 I believe that the issue here is not

         24  the matter of the freedom to smoke. We all support

         25  an individual's choice to smoke. The question is do
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          2  we support the matter of people causing other people

          3  to smoke, whether they be employers or whether they

          4  be the smokers themselves.

          5                 The arguments here have been framed

          6  as economic arguments, and I'm sure economy is very

          7  important.

          8                 However, we have heard the fear of

          9  loss of jobs and money, we haven't heard any real

         10  evidence that this would occur, and that's a great

         11  difference.

         12                 There was comment in this testimony

         13  before me that undocumented immigrants may suffer

         14  more because they would lose their jobs. As a

         15  healthcare person, as a surgeon myself, my concern

         16  is that they would lose their health. They may lose

         17  their lives, more important than their job. It

         18  hasn't been proven that they will lose their jobs at

         19  all, but their health could be affected.

         20                 More than an economic issue, in my

         21  opinion, Council members, this is a moral and an

         22  ethical issue. It was stated earlier that the

         23  question is a liberty question. This is not a

         24  question of liberty for the smoker and employer,

         25  this is a question of justice for those who do not
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          2  wish to smoke who are forced to smoke, because

          3  they're in jobs that they must have for their

          4  ability to live and they can't get out of those jobs

          5  very often.

          6                 Very often this is the most

          7  vulnerable group of our population that are forced

          8  into these positions. The more money, the more

          9  education you have, the less likely you'll be forced

         10  in such a job, into such a job.

         11                 I've come here for many years to

         12  testify on this issue, on the same side I am, and

         13  I'm seeing the funny situation where people are

         14  defending tobacco when they should be defending

         15  people's lives. And this bothers me a great deal

         16  over the 12 or 13 years that I've come here.

         17                 I believe that we need to snuff out

         18  tobacco in the workplace. This would be a great

         19  benefit to the public. Minority people, you may be

         20  interested to know, are most affected by these

         21  forced smokings. Poor people and minority people are

         22  forced more to smoke under these conditions, so they

         23  are the ones that suffer the most.

         24                 We need to say this to our employers.

         25  Our employers should not be allowed to force workers
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          2  into gas chambers that they do not wish to be in. We

          3  should be on the side of health, not argue according

          4  to money and economics only.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ODDO: Thank you.

          7  Thank you, sir.

          8                 If I look a little giddy, it's

          9  because you don't often see a republican with a

         10  gavel in his hand in this body. So, please have the

         11  next witness.

         12                 MR. McINTIRE: All right. My name is

         13  Paul McIntire. I worked for the California

         14  Restaurant Association for 14 years beginning in

         15  1985.

         16                 For the first six years of my

         17  employment for the California Restaurant

         18  Association, I attended hearings like this and

         19  argued against proposed smoking bans, based on the

         20  fact that it took away a restaurateur or bar owner's

         21  freedom of choice to decide themselves, as they were

         22  better qualified to decide than the government

         23  agency how many people in their restaurant or bar

         24  should be allowed to smoke or not to smoke. But my

         25  views, as well as the views of my employers changed
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          2  on that in 1992 when the Environmental Protection

          3  Agency declared secondhand smoke a class A

          4  carcinogen and it has been repeated today, studies

          5  by every credible health organization in America

          6  have confirmed that since then.

          7                 So, along with my employer, I

          8  switched to the other side in 1992, and helped pass

          9  AB 13, California's smoking ban, which banned

         10  smoking in all workplaces, including bars, and this

         11  is significant. You're not California, but that was

         12  one out of nine Americans who have been subject to

         13  the strict smoking ban since 1995 in restaurants,

         14  bars kicked in in '98.

         15                 We worried what would happen. We knew

         16  that diverse communities, such as Beverly Hills and

         17  Lodi had already done individual bans, and that they

         18  had not had problems, but we wondered about the

         19  whole state.

         20                 We had accounting firms,

         21  PriceWaterhouse said they we would lose seven

         22  percent of our restaurant sales. We, too, at that

         23  time were in the midst of the worst economic

         24  recession since World War 2. The story was that the

         25  golden state had lost its lustre and everybody was
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          2  bleeding, so the times couldn't have been worse.

          3                 Well, what actually happened? No jobs

          4  were lost. Instead of sales declining seven percent,

          5  they've gone up 14 percent every year, and the

          6  information I provide you does break that down for

          7  tourism, it breaks it down by bars that are partial

          8  liquor, no liquor and full service liquor licensed

          9  bars. There was no desertion by Asian and European

         10  tourists. They continued to come in droves and they

         11  respected our laws. There was no problem with

         12  loitering outside the restaurants in the urban

         13  areas, as has been discussed. Just like you see in

         14  office buildings here, you see a group of people

         15  outside who smoke for awhile then they go back

         16  inside. There wasn't a social unrest problem as a

         17  result of that.

         18                 California is warmer, but we do have

         19  climates like Lake Tahoe and Monmouth and big

         20  tourist areas in the middle of the winter have 12

         21  feet of snow, it's very cold, it's been successful

         22  in those areas, too.

         23                 And I think if you don't believe the

         24  statistics, you should believe the actions of the

         25  industry itself.
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          2                 Since the ban passed, restaurants

          3  continue to come to California in droves. People who

          4  could locate anywhere they want in the United States

          5  have come in droves. In my own community of Plasser

          6  County, there is such a demand for full service

          7  liquor licenses, that these licenses can be traded

          8  in the open market which normally sell for $25,000

          9  per license, in the last three years have sold for

         10  as much as $200,000 per license, an 800 percent

         11  increase, and the industry is not stupid. You

         12  wouldn't pay eight times the normal price, $200,000

         13  per liquor license, if you didn't think you could

         14  succeed with a full bar business in my city in

         15  California.

         16                 So, I can tell you from personal

         17  experience they do work. The doom and gloom scenario

         18  is you've had a chance to use California as the

         19  great Guinnea Pig and we have lived with it and it's

         20  been a successful thing, a no cost health benefit

         21  for every worker in California.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MS. ERICKSON: Good evening,

         24  Chairperson Quinn and members of the Health

         25  Committee. My name is Cindy Erickson, and I'm the
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          2  Chief Executive Officer for the American Lung

          3  Association of the City of New York, and I'm here

          4  today representing the estimated 5 million New York

          5  City residents who have suffered from lung disease

          6  in their lifetime, and the American Lung

          7  Association's century-long fight for the lung health

          8  of this City.

          9                 Additionally, I serve as co-chair of

         10  the New York City Asthma Partnership and I represent

         11  more than 100 government agencies, academic

         12  institutions, medical centers, and community-based

         13  organizations that have united in this coalition to

         14  fight asthma.

         15                 We thank the New York City Council

         16  and the Health Committee for considering this strong

         17  and comprehensive smoke-free and comprehensive

         18  smoke-free workplace act, and for providing an

         19  opportunity to comment today.

         20                 New York City has a proud history of

         21  taking the lead on issues affecting public health

         22  and the efforts to reduce the burden of

         23  tobacco-related disease are central to this

         24  achievement.

         25                 The evidence that smoking kills is
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          2  overwhelming, and I know you've heard numerous

          3  statistics.

          4                 More than 1,000 New Yorkers die each

          5  year from exposure to secondhand smoke, and every

          6  person living with an existing lung disease, like

          7  chronic bronchitis, faces additional reduction in

          8  lung function due to exposure to secondhand smoke.

          9                 In fact, evidence suggests that

         10  persons with respiratory conditions, such as asthma

         11  and allergies, are actually more susceptible to the

         12  ill-effects of secondhand smoke. This is especially

         13  important in New York City, which has the worst

         14  asthma rates in the nation, nearly triple the

         15  national average. Exposure to secondhand smoke

         16  directly contributes to the severity and the

         17  frequency of asthma attacks in adults, in children,

         18  and thousands are forced to seek medical attention

         19  as a result, which you also heard earlier today.

         20                 Imagine going to work each day in

         21  constant fear of not being able to breathe.

         22                 The crowd of smoke in the room

         23  threatens to trigger an asthma attack, close your

         24  airways and leave you gasping for air.

         25                 For many of the half a million New
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          2  Yorkers living with asthma, this fear is reality.

          3  And the emergency room is often a stop on the way

          4  home from working where smoking is permitted.

          5                 At a time when the incidence of

          6  asthma is at an all-time high and the commitment to

          7  combat this disease is at the forefront of health

          8  policy, the reduction of exposure to secondhand

          9  smoke takes on even greater importance.

         10                 You cannot be serious about fighting

         11  asthma until you are serious about reducing exposure

         12  to secondhand smoke.

         13                 New Yorkers will continue to face

         14  increased suffering from asthma and lung cancer

         15  until strict smoke-free workplace legislation is

         16  enacted.

         17                 Working with the communities

         18  throughout the City, we hear countless stories of

         19  mothers, fathers, sons and daughters who are

         20  learning firsthand the pain of asthma, lung cancer

         21  and other forms of lung disease.

         22                 We have an opportunity here today to

         23  make an impact in the lives of people before they

         24  reach this point, and just to sum up. It's our job

         25  to protect these New Yorkers and the thousands more
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          2  who breathe secondhand smoke when they go to work.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. LANEN: Hello. My name is David

          5  Lanen, I'm the Director for Broadway and Concert

          6  Field Services of Local 802, American Federation of

          7  Musicians.

          8                 I want to thank you, Christine Quinn,

          9  for allowing me the opportunity to testify on behalf

         10  of our 10,000 members who are professional musicians

         11  in the Greater New York area in support of the

         12  smoke-free workplace law, Intro. 256.

         13                 I'm glad to hear one of the previous

         14  panelists actually who was opposing the bill talk

         15  about the live music in the clubs, because always

         16  the forgotten worker is that poor musician, the very

         17  live music you're going to hear.

         18                 When playing an instrument,

         19  particularly a wind instrument, a musician is

         20  required to breathe especially deeply. Other

         21  musicians physically exert themselves during a

         22  performance and other ways. This exertion increases

         23  their breathing rates, thus increasing their

         24  exposure to secondhand smoke.

         25                 Many of our members who work in jazz
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          2  clubs and hotel bars have complained to us about the

          3  difficulty of playing their instrument in a room

          4  filled with smoke.

          5                 Some of the great jazz artists of

          6  this City have been forced to turn down employment

          7  in clubs because they cannot bear the health

          8  repercussions of secondhand smoke. The reality is

          9  that most of our members have a choice of either

         10  working in a smoke-filled room or not working at

         11  all.

         12                 Mayor Bloomberg earlier today

         13  mentioned that theaters and concert halls were

         14  smoke-free. With all due respect to Mr. Mayor, that

         15  is not an entirely true statement. We had serious

         16  complaints from Broadway musicians, several of whom

         17  who have developed serious respiratory conditions

         18  from smoke used not only by cigarettes that are

         19  allowed to be smoked on stage for stage effects, but

         20  also theatrical special effects, products that

         21  include glycome mineral oil, which are heated --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm meeting with

         23  President Moriarty about that tomorrow.

         24                 MR. LANEN: Very good.

         25                 I wanted to stay focused to
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          2  cigarettes, but since I sat here for hours and heard

          3  it go all over the place, I thought I'd get it in.

          4                 Basically we've struggled with that,

          5  and we have not been comforted, by the way, by OSHA

          6  permissible exposure limits, standards we have found

          7  in other situations, don't necessarily guarantee

          8  it's a healthy situation, and it's been interesting

          9  to hear comments on that today.

         10                 We would urge the Council to look

         11  into the dangers posed by that workplace hazard in

         12  addition to prompt action on the matter that's

         13  before you. Certainly all workers deserve a safe,

         14  healthy, smoke-free work environment. No one should

         15  have to breathe tobacco smoke pollution to hold a

         16  job, because it causes cancer, heart disease and

         17  respiratory disease, the health of all workers is

         18  equally important. No one should be allowed to make

         19  someone else sick.

         20                 I feel so strongly about this. You

         21  heard earlier, moments ago, that you had a lifelong

         22  non-smoker before you opposing this bill, I smoked

         23  for 20 years and I vigorously support this bill.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Are there any
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          2  questions for this panel?

          3                 Council Member Koppell.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I just would

          5  like to thank the gentleman who came from California

          6  with the information that you gave, including the

          7  statistics. I would wish that those who cite all

          8  these horrors would have some statistics to back

          9  them up.

         10                 The only statistics I've seen are

         11  from those who show that it has not had a bad

         12  economic effect.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you all very

         14  much.

         15                 Next we're going to hear from Joe

         16  Bossolina, Robert Shepard, Si Grayson and Neal Cole.

         17                 They'll be followed by Moises Perez,

         18  Javier Guzman, Ellan Hart Storm, Michael Wiener and

         19  Matthew Cadus.

         20                 We're not sure if Ellen Hart Storm is

         21  here or not. If she is, if you could just identify

         22  yourself to a member of our staff, please. Thank

         23  you.

         24                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Honorable

         25  members of the Council, thanks for hearing me. I
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          2  believe the intent of this new regulation is correct

          3  and well founded. The protection of employees'

          4  health should be an important concern; however, all

          5  of the City's residents and workers should be this

          6  Council's concern.

          7                 I believe it is this Council's

          8  obligation to determine what is acceptable air

          9  quality and then apply those standards equally to

         10  industry, commerce and to the City itself.

         11                 Unsuspecting citizens are subjected

         12  to many pollutants in many different places.

         13  Computer printing rooms, sealed environments of our

         14  modern skyscrapers, paper shredding rooms,

         15  dry-cleaners, beauty parlors, nail salons, the bus

         16  terminals and subway stations, and worst of all,

         17  Grand Central Station. But it's not an either/or

         18  situation. The goal can mean that without dictating

         19  personal choice, creating prohibition doesn't work.

         20                 Setting standards which can be

         21  equally applied would. Give the people a choice on

         22  how to get the air that is acceptable, and how to

         23  achieve that goal, elimination or remediation.

         24  Restaurant and bar workers know what kind of

         25  situation they work in. How about the unsuspecting
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          2  public on the train station, or the worker in a

          3  computer room? There exists technology today which

          4  can effectively remove the harmful effects of smoke.

          5  The air can be cleansed to any level desirability,

          6  eliminating any health risk.

          7                 Just recently, when Mayor Bloomberg

          8  proposed a solution to New York's growing waste

          9  problem, he suggested incineration. Incinerators

         10  today can be fitted with air-cleaning devices, which

         11  could eliminate the harmful emissions and protect

         12  the public.

         13                 Why would this Council not

         14  investigate the possibilities of using this

         15  technology, instead of risking the possibility of

         16  hundreds of small businesses being destroyed and

         17  possibly thousands of people putting out of work?

         18                 Why would the use of this technology

         19  be acceptable in one area of the City's needs?

         20                 Our fragile and recently devastated

         21  economy cannot and should not be put at risk on the

         22  basis of flawed studies, and the California and

         23  Maryland studies do have flaws.

         24                 The Mayor and several witnesses have

         25  said ventilation does not work. This is a
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          2  misinformed statement. Air cleaning is an

          3  engineering solution which does work, and any

          4  standard can be achieved.

          5                 OSHA recognizes engineered air

          6  cleaning as effective in most industries where

          7  workers are exposed to pollutants and harmful

          8  particulates.

          9                 The onerous and economically

         10  disastrous effects of the currently proposed changes

         11  to the existing regulation could easily be

         12  mitigated.

         13                 I would strongly urge this Council

         14  not to act quickly and recklessly when so much is at

         15  stake.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ODDO: Thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 Sir.

         19                 MR. BOSSOLINA: Good afternoon. My

         20  name is Joseph Bossolina. I am the President of

         21  McGee Amusements, and I am here to speak against

         22  Intro. No. 256.

         23                 My company, McGee Amusements, is an

         24  amusement game company that services the tavern

         25  industry in New York City. This company was founded
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          2  over 50 years ago by my father and my grandfather.

          3  We currently employ a total of about 14 people.

          4                 We own and operate the juke boxes and

          5  amusement games that are located in the taverns

          6  within the City.

          7                 Our equipment in these locations

          8  provides entertainment to our customers' patrons.

          9  The proceeds with these machines are split with the

         10  tavern owners and are a source of much needed

         11  revenues to these establishments.

         12                 Our customer base consists of local

         13  establishments, not any national chains, and our

         14  local customers serve local people, as well as the

         15  tourist trade.

         16                 Bar patrons, it is my opinion, will

         17  leave the bars in droves if they are unable to smoke

         18  while socializing. The result will be the failure of

         19  a large percent of bars. The ripple effect will hurt

         20  our industry in servicing the bars, including the

         21  amusement industry. We buy equipment, we pay taxes,

         22  and we employ people. We're asking you to vote

         23  against this proposal.

         24                 New York City has taken an

         25  increasingly antagonistic stance to the tavern
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          2  industry over the years. This proposal is the latest

          3  example. If the Council passes this law, our

          4  customers will have to tell their tavern patrons

          5  they cannot smoke while they're drinking and

          6  socializing in a bar.

          7                 While that may seem acceptable to

          8  those calling for this legislation, it must be said

          9  that that proposition is absurd.

         10                 This country is based on individual

         11  freedoms, while smoking is bad for you, clearly,

         12  many people choose to do so, especially when they're

         13  in bars.

         14                 Every action we take or fail to take

         15  as individuals could be said to effect our health in

         16  one way or another. Those who choose to smoke can be

         17  said to risk their health just as sure as those who

         18  fail to eat properly or exercise.

         19                 I cannot, however, accept the premise

         20  that secondhand smoke is dangerous to tavern patrons

         21  or workers when I read in today's Daily News that

         22  the former Director of the National Cancer Institute

         23  Smoking and Health Program, Dr. Gio Gori says:

         24  "There is no factual evidence, and if there is a

         25  risk, it is so small that the present methods can't
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          2  even measure it."

          3                 The Doctor's opinion merely states

          4  what we all know to be true, that the anti-smoking

          5  bandwagon is attempting to railroad this issue due

          6  to their desire to end smoking entirely.

          7                 While this is certainly a laudatory

          8  goal, those who choose to smoke have rights. Our

          9  public institutions must not allow the erosion of

         10  our personal liberties when there's such an obvious

         11  solution which is available and consistent with

         12  liberty and freedom and that is choice.

         13                 Let the establishment decide, much

         14  the way Jim Neary, who testified earlier today,

         15  sitting right in this seat beside me, he decided to

         16  go smoke-free. Let them decide. The bar owners and

         17  restaurants I speak to constantly tell me that they

         18  need workers. So, I don't believe it's possible, or

         19  it's fair to say that on a large scale that any

         20  worker is forced to choose between their health and

         21  a paycheck. I believe that to be nonsense,

         22  notwithstanding what people have said to you today.

         23                 It's ironic that this proposal comes

         24  at a time --

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ODDO: Could you
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          2  just wrap up, sir?

          3                 MR. BOSSOLINA: Yes.

          4                 It's ironic that this proposal comes

          5  at a time of such obvious hardship for our industry

          6  in particular and this City in general.

          7                 I believe it is a very bad idea to

          8  make this situation worse at this time.

          9                 I have to quickly note that those who

         10  have suggested that the bars have thrived in

         11  California. This is not the case. I have been in

         12  contact with an operator, just the same as me, in

         13  California who says that's a lie and that he has

         14  lost 30 percent of his locations as a result of this

         15  activity. And that's understanding the fact that in

         16  California they were able to build outdoor smoking

         17  areas, due to the areas that they have, the space

         18  that they have, and also due to the environment out

         19  there where you can stand outside during the day,

         20  and sometimes in New York City it's freezing cold

         21  during the day.

         22                 This is clearly not an example that

         23  New York City can follow.

         24                 In summation, I'm asking that you

         25  consider all the economic impacts to small business
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          2  that will be affected by this legislation. Please

          3  vote against this measure and allow individual

          4  choice to be the determining factor, and where the

          5  smoking will be allowed in locations, especially in

          6  taverns. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Go ahead.

          8                 MR. SHEPARD: My name is Robert

          9  Shepard. I am the Executive Director of the Empire

         10  State Distributors and Wholesalers Association. My

         11  members are the people that deliver virtually

         12  everything you can buy in a bodega or a convenience

         13  store. That would include confectionery items,

         14  grocery items, snack foods, and, yes, tobacco.

         15                 My members also collect about a

         16  million and a half dollars a day in city and state

         17  excise taxes on tobacco products.

         18                 I'm here in opposition to Intro. 256,

         19  and I've been asked to provide some trickle-down

         20  effects on what this law would mean if you passed

         21  it.

         22                 But, first, I just have a personal

         23  observation. When I was watching Mayor Bloomberg

         24  testify earlier, he and a few of the other people

         25  that spoke in support of this bill, rather glibly
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          2  blended the difference between first and secondhand

          3  smoke.

          4                 They're trying to -- it seemed to me

          5  that the Mayor was trying to fight the evils of

          6  secondhand smoke with the health affects of

          7  firsthand smoke. And I'll just ask you to bear in

          8  mind the difference between the two.

          9                 But the one line that Mayor Bloomberg

         10  came out with that I liked was, "let's get real."

         11  Well, my members live in the real world, and since

         12  Mayor Bloomberg forced his cigarette tax hike, sales

         13  that my members make to New York City stores have

         14  declined by 50 percent. Even the Mayor's Office

         15  acknowledges that tobacco sales are off about 40

         16  percent in the first two months of the tax hike.

         17                 One of my members, just rated by

         18  Newsday as the second largest firm in Nassau,

         19  privately-held firm in Nassau County, just laid off

         20  30 workers because of the decline in business.

         21  That's the real world. That's what's real.

         22                 Right now bodegas and convenience

         23  stores are bearing the burden of the Mayor's tax

         24  hike. I really feel very strongly that bars and

         25  restaurants will be the next ones to bear the burden
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          2  of this latest attack of the Mayor on the smokers.

          3                 I worked for government for 25 years

          4  and it's a very fine line to balance the obligation

          5  of government to protect its citizens and government

          6  interfering in private matters.

          7                 Right up on the ceiling of this very

          8  Chamber there's a statement from Washington that

          9  says our commercial policy should hold an equal and

         10  impartial hand, and that's what I urge you to do.

         11  You did the right thing as a government in 1995 when

         12  you protected non-smokers and you gave them a place

         13  to go where it was smoke-free. Don't take away that

         14  freedom of choice from the other people and force

         15  them to do something they don't want to.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Are there any

         18  questions for this?

         19                 Council Member Stewart.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: There's a

         21  statement in one of the testimony that says there

         22  exist technology today which can effectively remove

         23  the harmful effects of smoke. I want to know, who

         24  that cost is going to be attributed to, and who

         25  should enforce that.
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          2                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I imagine the

          3  enforcement would be the same people who are going

          4  to enforce the no-smoking ban. I mean, that's going

          5  to take enforcement. Lots of people are going to be

          6  cheating. I think there's going to start to exist

          7  private party rooms or whatever where there will be

          8  smoking. And the technology can easily be installed

          9  in any establishment that wishes to have smoking.

         10                 It is not an onerous cost. It can be

         11  part of an existing air conditioning system, where

         12  the air is constantly circulated through and cleaned

         13  before it comes out. There is independent

         14  pre-standing air cleaning machines which filter the

         15  air down to .003 microns.

         16                 I was going to bring with me today an

         17  engineer who testified before OSHA in Washington,

         18  but because of the hour and the time involved, he

         19  could not make it. But any information that the

         20  Council might want to have on what is available with

         21  the technology, I will be happy to supply.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: First of all,

         23  I can't foresee any technology that will be instant,

         24  that will be removing the impurities from the air

         25  while you're in there. You're breathing at the same
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          2  time, you're not going to stop breathing. But the

          3  other factor is the cost. Let me ask another

          4  question.

          5                 Do you know of any European country

          6  that has this bill that we can look at, as far as

          7  studies are concerned?

          8                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Air filtration?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: No, I'm

         10  talking about between --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: He asked you if

         12  there was any European country that had a similar

         13  Clean Indoor Air Act that we could look at to

         14  analyze?

         15                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I'm not

         16  familiar with that. I don't know. But as far as the

         17  cost is concerned, it is not a horrendous cost. To

         18  answer that question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: In what

         20  statement here, those people who smoke have rights.

         21  Do you think that people who don't smoke have rights

         22  too?

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Oh, I certainly

         24  believe that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So if they
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          2  don't want to smoke?

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: But that's

          4  where the ventilation and the air cleaning can come

          5  in.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you all

          7  very much.

          8                 We're next going to hear from Moises

          9  Perez, Javier Gomez, Russell Sciondra Michael Weiner

         10  and Matthew Cadis.

         11                 I just want to announce as that panel

         12  is coming up, we had also hoped today to have a

         13  panel of folks representing private clubs, Nights of

         14  Columbus, VFW, et cetera. At the last moment that

         15  panel cancelled. So, we had prearranged to have six

         16  for each side, the sixth panel in the opposition,

         17  unfortunately, due to scheduling problems, whatever,

         18  cancelled at the last minute. So, if people note an

         19  imbalance, that's why, we were notified of that

         20  about an hour ago.

         21                 We will, of course, reach out to

         22  those folks again before the next hearing, and we'll

         23  try to put them early on the agenda at the next

         24  hearing, since at the last minute, for whatever

         25  reason, they weren't able to attend.
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          2                 So, after this panel we're going to

          3  begin taking the slips of folks who have signed up.

          4                 What we'll do is, and if you didn't

          5  hear before, there are two sheets of paper at the

          6  Sergeant's desk, one is a white eight and a half by

          7  11 sheet of paper, that's for you to fill out with

          8  your name, your phone number, et cetera. Submit to

          9  the Sergeant-At-Arms and we will let you know when

         10  the second hearing is. There's a smaller slip, if

         11  you would like to testify tonight, fill at your

         12  name, et cetera, note whether you're in favor or

         13  opposition.

         14                 The hearing is going to go til 8:00

         15  tonight. We will not hear from everyone probably who

         16  has filled up the little sheets, and we're going to

         17  call people up in a couple -- like I'll probably

         18  call three or four people up at once just to move

         19  things along, you know, and go back and forth.

         20                 Okay, so, now that we have the ground

         21  rules, whoever would like to go first will start the

         22  clock.

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good afternoon.

         24  This is a point of clarification. There was a little

         25  bit of confusion. Michael Weiner was not supposed to
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          2  be testifying, it was supposed to be Dr. Richard

          3  Stein, but unfortunately he had to go back to

          4  Brooklyn Hospital. So if I could, I'd like to read

          5  his testimony? Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's fine.

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good evening.

          8  My name is Dr. Richard Stein. New York City Board

          9  Member for the American Heart Association of New

         10  York City, and I am the Chief Cardiologist for

         11  Brooklyn Hospital.

         12                 I would like to thank you for the

         13  opportunity to speak on behalf of the American Heart

         14  Association in support of Intro. 256.

         15                 On August 12th, 2002, Mayor

         16  Bloomberg, Health Commissioner Frieden and several

         17  members of the New York City Council announced to

         18  the world that they were intent on protecting all

         19  New Yorkers from the toxic fumes of secondhand

         20  smoke.

         21                 Not only did we as an organization

         22  applaud this bold move, but personally as a

         23  cardiologist, I wanted to know what I could do to

         24  make sure the proposal becomes law.

         25                 I believe that this legislation is
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          2  not only sound public health policy, but it's one of

          3  the best ways to reduce the incidence of stroke and

          4  cardiovascular diseases.

          5                 I am here today to support our

          6  progressive administration and to urge the entire

          7  New York City Council to take the lead on protecting

          8  all New Yorkers from the exposure to secondhand

          9  smoke.

         10                 Secondhand smoke has long been

         11  associated with heart disease because of tobacco

         12  smoke's overall affect on the cardiovascular system.

         13                 Studies show that the inhalation of

         14  tobacco smoke causes blood vessels to contract,

         15  limits blood flow throughout the body, reduces the

         16  person's oxygen supply, damages arteries, lowers the

         17  good HDL cholesterol and increases the risk of

         18  clotting.

         19                 Those exposed to secondhand smoke are

         20  82 percent more likely to suffer a stroke, and even

         21  the occasional exposure to secondhand smoke

         22  increases the risk of developing heart disease by 58

         23  percent.

         24                 Unfortunately, the affects of

         25  secondhand smoke results in a number of grim
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          2  statistics, specifically the death toll of more than

          3  40,000 cardiovascular deaths each year.

          4                 In New York City alone approximately

          5  1,000 lives are claimed by the exposure to

          6  secondhand smoke. Secondhand smoke contains more

          7  than 4,000 chemicals, more than 40 of which have

          8  been proven to cause cancer.

          9                 The United States Environmental

         10  Protection Agency has classified secondhand smoke as

         11  a group A carcinogen.

         12                 This places tobacco smoke in the same

         13  deadly class of arsenic, asbestos, radon and

         14  benzene.

         15                 In conclusion, the American Heart

         16  Association believes that no one should be exposed

         17  to secondhand smoke to dine or work in our great

         18  City. And scientific evidence is argument enough to

         19  pass Intro. 256. As legislators you must respond to

         20  the overwhelming data documenting the detrimental

         21  health affect of secondhand smoke, and protect the

         22  workers, residents and visitors of our City.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Next witness,

         25  please.
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          2                 MR. SCIANDRA: Thank you. My name is

          3  Russell Sciandra. I'm with the Center for a

          4  Tobacco-Free New York.

          5                 I'm going to talk about something

          6  different today. I think there is some information

          7  that the Council should know that would help to

          8  explain why the tobacco industry and some bar and

          9  club owners are so adamantly opposed to this

         10  legislation; and that is, because for the cigarette

         11  companies, bars are an important venue for promoting

         12  cigarettes.

         13                 Tobacco companies spend, and

         14  everything I tell you is going to be based on

         15  internal industry documents, which are attached to

         16  my testimony that I gave to the Sergeant-At-Arms.

         17                 Tobacco companies spend hundreds of

         18  millions of dollars every year in this country

         19  promoting their brands in bars and clubs.

         20                 A 1998 competitor assessment by

         21  Phillip Morris estimates that RJR tobacco alone

         22  budgeted $80 million a year nationwide promoting

         23  Camel and Winston cigarettes in bars and clubs.

         24                 The industry documents make it clear

         25  that the target of this program is what the industry
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          2  calls young adult smokers, that's a industry

          3  euphemism for people under age 25.

          4                 The purpose of these programs, is "to

          5  reinforce brand personality, establish our cigarette

          6  as the trend-setter's brand of choice." For this

          7  purpose,"hip trendy clubs" are identified where

          8  branded materials are displayed and promotional

          9  events are held.

         10                 The aim is to reach new smokers whose

         11  smoking habit and brand choice is not yet solidified

         12  and convert them into lifelong customers.

         13                 Since the early nineties when bar

         14  programs began in earnest, the smoking rate among 18

         15  to 24 year olds in this country is up 50 percent at

         16  a time when smoking overall has decreased.

         17                 While most of the young patrons in

         18  these establishments where these promotions take

         19  place are above the legal age for smoking, this

         20  isn't always the case.

         21                 One of the documents I attached is a

         22  1998 memo prepared by Burson Marsteller, a Philip

         23  Morris contractor, which reports on a Camel Club

         24  Night held at Twilo, a dance club formerly located

         25  on West 27th Street. Camel is made by RJR.
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          2                 This is what the report says. Now,

          3  remember, this was intended for the eyes of Philip

          4  Morris.

          5                 "The minimum age required to enter

          6  this establishment is 18. In order to consume

          7  alcoholic beverages, you had to present

          8  identification and receive a bracelet that confirmed

          9  you were above the legal drinking age. Most of the

         10  participants did not have a bracelet, and I would

         11  suspect the average age was approximately 18, if not

         12  younger.

         13                 In order to receive a free pack of

         14  Camel or Camel Lights, as well as a Camel Zippo

         15  lighter, you were asked to fill out a form and

         16  submit a birth date. At no point did the promoters

         17  check identification before handing out the

         18  cigarettes. By the end of the night, packs of Camel

         19  cigarettes littered the nightclub, and full packs

         20  were readily accessible on the tables, making it

         21  unnecessary to solicit a promoter or fill out their

         22  form."

         23                 I want to point out that the main

         24  reason the industry does this is, first of all, to

         25  promote their brand directly to smokers, and then
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          2  also to get their name and address so they can put

          3  them on a mailing list for future promotions.

          4                 Bar owners are compensated for

          5  turning their establishments --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Could you sum up,

          7  please? Thank you.

          8                 MR. SCIANDRA: Well, bar owners are

          9  extensively promoted, compensated for this. They get

         10  up to $20,000 in addition to free cigarettes, free

         11  advertising, a lot of other things.

         12                 Now, I'm not saying that you should

         13  ban smoking in clubs in order to put an end to these

         14  types of promotions, although that will happen, but

         15  what I am saying is that public health and employee

         16  health should take precedent over really what's just

         17  one more way for the cigarette companies to peddle

         18  their cigarettes to young people. And I hope this

         19  information will give the Council some added insight

         20  into the real interests of some of those who oppose

         21  this legislation.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And

         24  thank you for submitting all of that information.

         25                 The next witness, please. If the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            268

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  light is off, the mic is on.

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you. Mr.

          4  Moises Perez couldn't be here today. I was hoping

          5  that I could read his testimony?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure, that's fine.

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

          8                 Reading from Mr. Moises' words, it

          9  says "Thank you for this opportunity to testify

         10  about the importance of smoke-free work environments

         11  in New York City.

         12                 Let me first begin by thanking the

         13  New York City Council Committee on Health, under the

         14  leadership of Councilwoman Christine Quinn, for

         15  convening this very important public hearing on

         16  protecting New Yorkers from secondhand smoke in the

         17  workplace, because all New York City workers deserve

         18  a safe, healthy, smoke-free work environment.

         19                 My name is Moises Perez, and I am the

         20  Chief Executive Officer for Alianza Dominicana

         21  (Alianza), a non-profit community development

         22  organization that partners with youth, families and

         23  public and private institutions to revitalize

         24  economically distressed neighborhoods. Alianza's

         25  mission is to assist children, youth and families
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          2  break the cycle of poverty and fulfill their

          3  potential as members of the global community.

          4                 Consistent with that mission, Alianza

          5  runs a program called Smoke Free Teens Against

          6  Tobacco use" -- which I am the coordinator of.

          7  That's my words, not Moises -- "a community-based

          8  program founded in 1993 that educates adolescents

          9  and youth about the health risks about tobacco use.

         10  TATU's main goal" -- TATU for short, Teens Against

         11  Tobacco Use --"is to reduce the number of teens who

         12  use tobacco and to educate the adult population of

         13  our community about the effects of secondhand smoke.

         14  TATU also gives mini-grants to youth in the

         15  Washington Heights and Inwood" community, as well as

         16  Harlem, sorry, "to create their own projects on this

         17  issue.

         18                 I am here along with Mr. Javier Gomez

         19  who is the owner of a thriving business in the

         20  Washington Heights community to offer our support

         21  for Proposed Local Law 256 and to urge you to pass

         22  the Smoke-free Workplace Act to protect all workers

         23  from secondhand smoke.

         24                 As director of an organization, I

         25  feel it is important that those who work for me do
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          2  so in a safe and healthy working environment, one

          3  that is smoke-free.

          4                 As director of a community

          5  development organization, I want to tell you that

          6  Alianza Dominicana believes all New York City

          7  workers deserve the same protections.

          8                 No one should be forced to breathe

          9  poison to keep their job, but today, even though we

         10  know secondhand smoke causes disease and death, 1 in

         11  4 New York City workers is still forced to breathe

         12  secondhand smoke at work.

         13                 This is especially a problem for

         14  those most vulnerable workers, including immigrants

         15  and those without economic security. The less

         16  powerful a worker is, the more they need the law on

         17  their side to protect their rights.

         18                 I strongly urge you to pass the

         19  Smoke-Free Workplace Act because all workers deserve

         20  a safe, healthy and smoke-free work environment, no

         21  matter what job they hold, no matter what community

         22  they come from.

         23                 In closing, I would like to thank

         24  this Committee for convening this important and

         25  timely hearing and for the opportunity to present my
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          2  testimony."

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I will actually

          5  speak a little bit again, because Mr. Javier Gomez,

          6  who will be testifying, is the owner of El Malecon

          7  Restaurant. He's a Spanish-speaking restaurant

          8  owner. We thought it was important because 90

          9  percent of the community who lives in Washington

         10  Heights, which is in Northern Manhattan, speaks

         11  Spanish, so we thought that we needed our voices

         12  heard in the language where most people speak.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Absolutely.

         14                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: So I will be

         15  translating for Mr. Javier Gomez.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 MR. GOMEZ: (Through the interpreter.)

         19  I will be saying word for word as if I was speaking,

         20  as if I was him.)

         21                 He says thank you for this

         22  opportunity to testify about the importance of

         23  smoke-free air.

         24                 My name is Javier Gomez. I am the

         25  owner of El Malecon Restaurant, the largest
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          2  Dominican-owned business in the Washington Heights

          3  community.

          4                 El Malecon has more than 100

          5  employees working at three different locations.

          6                 I understand the challenge of making

          7  a business successful. I understand the importance

          8  of making my customers feel safe and healthy while

          9  they enjoy their meals.

         10                 I also know how important it is to

         11  keep our workers from getting sick.

         12                 It is my believe that all customers

         13  and all workers deserve the right to breathe clean

         14  air. I also recognize that customers could go

         15  somewhere else to eat, but it's not easy to find

         16  some place else to work, which is why I support

         17  proposal Local Law 256.

         18                 At El Malecon, I insist that my

         19  waiters and waitresses enforce a "no smoking"

         20  policy. In fact, they will ask a customer who is

         21  smoking to stop right away because it is important

         22  to me to know that everyone is safe and healthy, and

         23  they should be in any restaurant. And they should be

         24  safe and healthy in every restaurant, especially in

         25  mine.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You're actually

          3  going to get three more minutes.

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We're actually

          5  concluding. He says thanks again for hearing my

          6  testimony and I strongly believe that this proposed

          7  law will make a needed difference for all workers

          8  and customers too.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.

         12                 MR. GOMEZ: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Go ahead.

         14                 MR. CASDA: Good evening. My name is

         15  Matthew Casda, and I live in Speaker Miller's

         16  district. I also work in the City and I'm the Vice

         17  President of a prominent investment bank here in

         18  Manhattan.

         19                 I've come here today to tell the

         20  members of the Health Committee and the rest of the

         21  City Council the New York City laws regarding

         22  smoking in the workplace simply do not work.

         23                 First, I should tell you that

         24  physically I'm extremely sensitive to cigarette

         25  smoke. When I breathe secondhand smoke, I often get
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          2  pounding and persistent headaches, followed by

          3  coughing and other physical ailments.

          4                 You might think that a person in my

          5  position wouldn't have to worry about exposure to

          6  smoke in my office, after all it's 2002, I was under

          7  the impression that people aren't allowed to smoke

          8  in office buildings. Well, as a matter in fact they

          9  are.

         10                 As a result of a loophole in the

         11  current law, New York City allows a woman in my firm

         12  to smoke incessantly, regardless of her co-workers'

         13  feelings. She's in her own office so she's legally

         14  allowed to continue puffing away, despite the

         15  continued pleas of myself, as well as others.

         16                 She says it's her right. But don't I

         17  have a right to breathe clean air? Don't I have a

         18  right to perform my job while not putting my own

         19  health at risk?

         20                 Every single day I deal with the

         21  negative ramifications of the loophole, and, quite

         22  frankly, I'm sick of it.

         23                 I should tell you that I have a

         24  private office with a door and walls from floor to

         25  ceiling, yet every day my work is disrupted by the
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          2  constant smell of cigarette smoke lofting through

          3  the halls.

          4                 I routinely work late, and even hours

          5  after she's left the building, her presence lingers

          6  in the form of stale tobacco smoke.

          7                 Today I've met a number of people who

          8  have similar concerns, some of which work in places

          9  where smoking is practically encouraged.

         10                 Some of these people, bartenders and

         11  wait staff are inhaling smoke for up to ten hours

         12  per day. I can't even imagine being put in that

         13  position, it just doesn't seem right.

         14                 Personally, the fact that smoking is

         15  allowed in any workplace is remarkably

         16  disappointing. All of the research that I've read

         17  shows that there is very little, if any, doubt that

         18  secondhand smoke causes heart disease and lung

         19  cancer, among other illnesses, and, yet, our

         20  government allows its constituents to be exposed in

         21  their workplace, sitting idly by and watching as

         22  thousands of people die each year from something

         23  that is completely preventable.

         24                 An opportunity exists here for you

         25  and all members of the City Council to truly protect
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          2  the people you represent.

          3                 There is clear and compelling

          4  evidence that secondhand smoke poses a real threat

          5  to employees, and action must be taken.

          6                 The current law does not work. It is

          7  not good enough. Please, for me and every other

          8  worker constantly exposed to this awful health

          9  hazard, I ask you to pass Intro. 256.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 Any questions for this panel?

         13                 Sure, Council Member Oddo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Sciandra, I

         15  want to paraphrase your testimony, you tell me if

         16  it's accurate or not, my understanding of it.

         17                 In 1994 I think it was the CEOs for

         18  the seven leading cigarette manufacturers stood up

         19  and under oath testified before the Congress that

         20  tobacco wasn't addictive and they didn't target to

         21  kids. They got their hands caught pretty much in the

         22  cookie jar, and is it accurate to say that there was

         23  a fundamental shift of now who they are targeting?

         24                 MR. SCIANDRA: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: For future

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            277

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  smokers. They went from young people and Joe Camel

          3  and now they're trying for an older audience under

          4  25, and in some bars, let's be fair to all of them,

          5  but in some bars the bar is actually a tool to

          6  attract the smokers of tomorrow?

          7                 MR. SCIANDRA: Yes. I think that's

          8  absolutely right. I think they clearly know, you

          9  know, the under 18 crowd is going to be out of

         10  reach, so now they are aiming at the 18 to 25 group.

         11  We are talking about, they're interested in the bars

         12  that are attractive to those young people.

         13                 So, obviously what I said does not

         14  apply to all bars. There are, I counted on one

         15  document from 1997, they identified 69 clubs in New

         16  York City that were participating in one or another

         17  company's programs. That was a partial list. I'm

         18  sure it's more. These programs are growing. This is

         19  a new angle for the tobacco industry.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Do you have that

         21  list that we perhaps could get from you at some

         22  point, or is it in your packet?

         23                 MR. SCIANDRA: It's in there.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, terrific. Oh,

         25  great. Thank you.
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          2                 Okay, thank you all very much.

          3                 We're next going to start with the

          4  slips from members of the public who were not on

          5  prearranged panels.

          6                 We're going to start calling people

          7  up. We're going to alternate, call four people pro,

          8  four con, back and forth.

          9                 Okay, and what I'm going to do is I'm

         10  going to call the four people up who are going to go

         11  and then I'm going to call the four people who will

         12  be next. If the four people who are on deck would

         13  just come and sit in the front row, then we can get

         14  more people in.

         15                 So, the first panel is Gene Borio,

         16  Eileen Weiss, Don Gemson and Susan O'Brien.

         17                 The first panel of the first,

         18  whatever, group of four in opposition, and just if

         19  you're here when I call your name just say so, so I

         20  know.

         21                 Joseph Dobrian? Okay. Carl Jones? Is

         22  Mr. Jones still here? Mimi Burnham? Is Mimi still

         23  here? Morgan McLean. Is Morgan still here? Michelle

         24  Bell? Ken Tiardo? Edward Coccoran? All right. Jay

         25  Schand? Okay. Matthew Boccaccio? I'm sure I'm saying
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          2  that wrong. He lives on Humboldt Street in Brooklyn.

          3  Is he still here? Okay. Robert Bruni? Okay, you're

          4  just on next. Oh, you can move up, whatever. Dorothy

          5  Kuminsky? Alex Stauis? I'm not 100 percent sure, on

          6  East 196th Street. Okay, you'll be on the panel

          7  after this. So, if you want to move up to the front

          8  row, that would be great.

          9                 We were calling up Gene Borio? Okay.

         10  Eileen Weiss? Is Eileen still here? Okay. Don

         11  Gemson? Okay. Susan O'Brien? Okay. Let me get two

         12  other folks to come up and be with you.

         13                 Former Parks Commissioner Henry

         14  Stern? Not here. This is just folks who are in

         15  support of it. You're in support? Okay, then that's

         16  fine, you can be in support on this panel. You're in

         17  support of the bill? All right. It's important that

         18  you mark that on your slips. That one didn't

         19  actually say.

         20                 Beverly Lydeatte? Beverly, would you

         21  join the panel? Then we have a complete foursome.

         22                 If anybody has written testimony just

         23  give it to the Sergeant.

         24                 Okay, why don't we start with Beverly

         25  and we'll work our way across.
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          2                 MS. LYDEATTE: Good evening.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Try to make sure

          4  only one mic is on. I think that's part of the

          5  problem. Okay.

          6                 MS. LYDEATTE: My name is Beverly

          7  Lydeatte, and I am a staffperson at the Committee

          8  for Interns and Residents, which is a part of the

          9  SEIU. CIR is a union that represents 12,000 interns

         10  and residents of which 6,000 work here in New York

         11  City, and 2,000 of that number work for the New York

         12  City Health and Hospitals Corporation. The members

         13  of this union are doctors who work around the clock,

         14  treating asthma cancer patients, among others.

         15                 They seldom have an opportunity to

         16  speak out in public on health issues and how to

         17  prevent illnesses.

         18                 I am pleased to be here today to

         19  present the statement of the president of CIR, Dr.

         20  Ruth Potee. I would also like to say that this has a

         21  special meaning to me, since I am a cancer survivor.

         22                 Statement of Dr. Ruth Potee,

         23  President of CIR.

         24                 As a physician and as the president

         25  of the country's largest union of interns and
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          2  residents, I want to applaud the Administration of

          3  Michael Bloomberg for the courageous efforts to

          4  limit smoking in restaurants and other public venues

          5  around the City of New York.

          6                 There is likely no one in this room

          7  who does not know the profound medical and economic

          8  cost created by the tobacco addiction. Cigarette

          9  smoking is the leading cause of preventable death

         10  and costs approximately $157 billion annually in

         11  health-related economic losses.

         12                 Every day the young physicians who

         13  staff our teaching hospitals care for those ravaged

         14  by the effects of the substances found in

         15  cigarettes. Most people can only connect lung cancer

         16  to cigarettes, but every doctor knows that smoking

         17  cigarettes leads to heart disease, breast and

         18  bladder cancer, osteoporosis, chronic respiratory

         19  problems and premature birth for pregnant women.

         20                 Our residents care for profoundly

         21  growth retarded and premature infants in the City's

         22  neonatal intensive care units and it is estimated

         23  that each year 1,000 infants die from complications

         24  directly related to smoking during pregnancy.

         25                 For those infants that survive, the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            282

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  continued exposure to secondhand smoke causes

          3  lifelong illnesses. Second only to sleeping on their

          4  stomachs, exposure to cigarettes is the leading

          5  cause of SIDS, or Sudden Infant Death Syndrome.

          6                 In addition, caretakers who expose

          7  their children to smoke are putting them at greater

          8  risk of developing asthma and upper respiratory

          9  infections.

         10                 Resident physicians also care for a

         11  separate group of innocent people felled by

         12  cigarettes. In trauma centers, burn units and

         13  emergency rooms, physicians care for people injured

         14  in residential fires directly attributed to untended

         15  cigarettes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Beverly, if you

         17  could sum up, please.

         18                 MS. LYDEATTE: I'll sum up.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MS. LYDEATTE: Many don't survive. In

         22  fact, an estimated 950 people are killed each year

         23  by such fires.

         24                 All efforts to reduce exposure to

         25  smoke should be lauded.
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          2                 The Committee of Interns and

          3  Residents urges you to support Mayor Bloomberg in

          4  his efforts to control this major public health

          5  threat. CIR strongly supports Intro. 256. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 MS. LYDEATTE: Okay.

          9                 MR. BORIO: Hi. I want to thank the

         10  Council members for staying through this long

         11  process.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: People should just

         13  know, though folks aren't here, whatever you submit

         14  in writing will be distributed to everybody and also

         15  everyone's testimony today is being taped and the

         16  transcript is obviously available to all the Council

         17  Members. So, just so you know that.

         18                 MR. BORIO: My name is Gene Borio. I

         19  worked in the restaurant as a waiter, and a

         20  bartender in New York City for ten years. I just

         21  wanted to, before I go into my prepared testimony,

         22  mention an incident that came in the wires this

         23  morning. A Canadian waitress, a non-smoker, for 40

         24  years she waited on tables, and she came down with

         25  lung cancer, and the Canadian Workman's Compensation
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          2  Board has recognized that her lung cancer was due to

          3  her occupation. So, that is another potential cost

          4  to the City and to restaurants that may occur at

          5  some time in the future.

          6                 I worked as a waiter and a bartender

          7  in New York for ten years. I worked for the Reise

          8  brothers, and I worked for the O'Neal brothers, and

          9  several other restaurants. And I remember how it was

         10  before we were really aware of the danger of

         11  secondhand smoke.

         12                 I know what it was like to work

         13  surrounded by smoke. We used to kind of laugh at it,

         14  at O'Neal's Balloon outside of Lincoln's Center, but

         15  we didn't know anything about secondhand smoke then

         16  and I would go home every night and I would cough

         17  myself to sleep for half an hour, except for one

         18  night, when a guy came in, put his ashtray down and

         19  kept filling it for an hour and a half. That night I

         20  went home and it took me two hours of coughing

         21  before I got to sleep.

         22                 You can try it some time. Just put a

         23  burning cigarette ten feet away from you and let it

         24  go to you cigarette after cigarette.

         25                 I also remember my friend Raymond,
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          2  dying of AIDS and working of the only job he had to

          3  keep his body and soul together, as a bartender at

          4  the Brew Burger on 51st Street by Rockefeller

          5  Center.

          6                 I remember him telling me he could

          7  handle the work, but the cigarette smoke was murder

          8  on his compromised lungs.

          9                 Back in the 1900s, spittoons were

         10  removed from almost all places of public

         11  accommodation when it was discovered that spitting

         12  tobacco spread disease. That, too, was a relatively

         13  recent discovery, and yet spittoons were taken out

         14  across the country, no matter how much bars and

         15  restaurants wanted to cater to their

         16  tobacco-spitting customers. It went fairly smoothly,

         17  and maybe that's because Philip Morris hadn't set up

         18  a spittoon institute with its attendant front groups

         19  and Pablo Picaso wasn't outside jumping up and down

         20  and yelling tobacco spitting any place, any time,

         21  anywhere, was a constitutional right.

         22                 So, I ask the City Council to put

         23  aside the distractions of tobacco front groups and

         24  the people they've stampeded.

         25                 I ask you to remember the workers.
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          2  Don't make them have to cough themselves to sleep.

          3  Please lead the nation. Yesterday it was the

          4  spittoons, today the right thing to do to stop the

          5  spread of disease is to ban to public smoking.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 MR. GEMSON: I'm Don Gemson, the Chair

          8  of the Coalition for a Smoke-free City, which

          9  represents over 250 organizations. I'm also an

         10  internist on the faculty at Mailman School of Public

         11  Health at Columbia University.

         12                 When I was a medical student some 20

         13  years ago, my best friend told me that his

         14  grandmother, an alert and loving woman in her

         15  seventies, had just been diagnosed with lung cancer.

         16  Like most lung cancer it was inoperable and

         17  incurable.

         18                 At that time I asked if she smoked.

         19  That was the odd thing, he said, she never smoked.

         20  No one knew how she contracted the lung cancer.

         21  Within a year she had died.

         22                 About five years later, when the

         23  Surgeon General issued the report concluding that

         24  secondhand smoke caused lung cancer and other lethal

         25  diseases, I asked my friend about his grandfather
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          2  who had died several years before his grandmother

          3  was diagnosed with lung cancer, had he smoked? I

          4  asked. Yes, was the reply. Two packs a day.

          5                 Today the evidence tells us what we

          6  didn't know 20 years ago, that secondhand smoke

          7  kills.

          8                 CDC estimates that secondhand smoke

          9  kills over 50,000 Americans every year, and to put

         10  that in perspective, that is over twice as many

         11  people who died from cirrhosis or kidney disease,

         12  it's almost three times as many who die from

         13  homicides, and it's over three times as many as die

         14  from HIV/AIDS, all from secondhand smoke.

         15                 We also know another important fact.

         16  A worker in a smoke environment during a typical

         17  eight-hour shift, inhales the equivalent of about

         18  one-half pack of cigarettes every day.

         19                 This bill is not about smokers

         20  rights. Smokers will still have the right to smoke.

         21  It is about government's first responsibility, to

         22  protect the health of innocent people.

         23                 Right now today in our City 400,000

         24  workers are at risk of asthma, bronchitis, heart

         25  disease, stroke and lung cancer because they inhale
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          2  secondhand smoke at their jobs.

          3                 Every day we wait we see other states

          4  and counties moving ahead. Every day we wait we

          5  place more workers at risk.

          6                 This bill should be supported then,

          7  not just because it is good for business, though

          8  evidence from California indicates that it is, not

          9  just because the majority of New Yorkers support it,

         10  although polls show over 70 percent of New Yorkers

         11  do, this bill should be supported for one simple

         12  fact, it will save lives, and it will do so without

         13  costing the government a cent.

         14                 I urge the City Council to do the

         15  right thing, to protect the lives of innocent

         16  people, to provide every worker with a safe and

         17  healthy work environment, and to pass Intro. 256.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 Okay, go ahead.

         21                 MR. DAVIS: Good evening, and thank

         22  you for listening to me. My name is Alexander Marks

         23  Davis. I work as an environmental health and safety

         24  engineer. My job is to prevent the health problems,

         25  so we don't have people out on Worker's Comp and a
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          2  whole sort of other things, which we all know about.

          3  We all know the costs are horrendous on all of this.

          4                 I want you to know I spend more time

          5  probably, or if not the most, probably the second

          6  most, not the first most, time where I work getting

          7  people to stop smoking so other people who are not

          8  smokers or cannot be around smoke don't suffer from

          9  it.

         10                 I would hate to tell you how much

         11  time that's spent lost to getting other work done,

         12  be it the noise, the ergonomics, the vibration

         13  control, all of this, all because people can't stop

         14  smoking, because we know how serious an addiction it

         15  is, all because the government allows it to go on in

         16  the guise of free enterprise, shall you say, or

         17  being a fair government. We're not looking after our

         18  people. We all know the government is supposed to

         19  look after our people. The time has come to pass the

         20  bill.

         21                 Well, let me give you another

         22  interesting story. Before there was a gentleman who

         23  said there are machines that clean the air. Again,

         24  I'm an engineer. Nothing, I repeat, nothing, I

         25  repeat, nothing, will clean up a mess, a problem, as
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          2  well as preventing it.

          3                 A good example is the Superfund

          4  sites. Look at the Hudson River with the PCBs, look

          5  what it's going to cost. The same way with tobacco,

          6  and tobacco smoke. We can ban it in the workplace,

          7  we can end this travesty, in very short order.

          8                 Another thing, there was some woman

          9  before who had spoken, I'm sure there are others who

         10  will speak about how much business we'll lose. I

         11  want you to know, I'm allergic to smoke. I get asked

         12  with buddies, how about we go to a club? I say I

         13  can't because of the smoke. They say well then none

         14  of us are going to.

         15                 I'm not the only one that's like

         16  this. There are thousands of others, I guarantee

         17  you. All these businesses are losing money because

         18  we can't go because I'm allergic to the smoke. It

         19  may be me with a group of four, five, six, seven

         20  other people. You multiply that by thousands of

         21  other times, and the businesses will do better

         22  without the smoke. We all know that.

         23                 Another thing. Federal government

         24  says a safe workplace for all, but they allow

         25  smoking. Let New York City with this bill be the
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          2  first City in New England and the Mid-Atlantic

          3  states, if I'm not mistaken, to take the approach of

          4  making, of following OSHA's law and making smoking

          5  not be allowed in the workplace at all.

          6                 If the federal government hasn't done

          7  it, let us be the ones to do it. First let us set an

          8  example, as New York City has been an example

          9  setter, a trend setter, in many years past with a

         10  lot of different bills.

         11                 Another thing. People, when they're

         12  out on disability, earn less money. They pay less

         13  taxes. We're not helping the government's coffers,

         14  which are in trouble. Let's ban the smoking so

         15  people are at work, and more effective, and more

         16  productive and let's make them help make the City's

         17  coffers hire with more taxes.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 Does anybody have any questions?

         21  Okay. The next four speakers could come up. And I'm

         22  just going to call the folks who are going to come

         23  after that. Again, if you're here, if you could just

         24  raise your hand or let me know? This will be for the

         25  panel following these four folks.
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          2                 Is Jay LeMaster still here? Okay.

          3  Albert Hsu still here from Asian Pacific American

          4  Medical Students Association? Okay, so just move up

          5  to the front row.

          6                 Clair Millman? Okay, great. You'll be

          7  on the panel following this, you want to move up to

          8  the front row?

          9                 Sarah Porter? Dr. Joyce Shriver?

         10  Marty Sonnenfeld? Stephen Helfer.

         11                 MR. HELFER: I'm already here. I think

         12  I'm one of the last of the Mohicans.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, you didn't

         14  show -- okay, I've got you in the wrong pile.

         15                 Susan Tucker? Phil Tenisburg? Okay,

         16  so you'll be on the next group. Jeremy Bohen?

         17                 MR. BOHEN: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, so, you'll

         19  be on the group after this.

         20                 There was a fourth person who had

         21  said he was still here, is that person still here?

         22  Were you in opposition to the bill?

         23                 MR. SCHRAND: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Did I call your

         25  name before?
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          2                 MR. SCHRAND: Schrand.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: What's your name?

          4                 MR. SCHRAND: Schrand, S-c-h-r-a-n-d.

          5  I wasn't sure whether you said I was on this panel

          6  or not.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Are you from

          8  Virginia?

          9                 MR. SCHRAND: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay. All right.

         11  Whoever would like to go first.

         12                 You start, sir.

         13                 MR. DOBRIAN: I'll go first.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, you'll go

         15  first. Fine.

         16                 MR. DOBRIAN: My name is Joseph

         17  Dobrian. I am the libertarian candidate for U.S.

         18  House of Representatives in the Eighth District.

         19                 I am not going to talk to you about

         20  statistics or economics or science, I'm going to

         21  talk to you about what's really going on here.

         22                 Some people would have us believe

         23  that this proposed legislation is intended to

         24  protect the health of bar and restaurant employees.

         25  In fact, it is malicious legislation, put forth by
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          2  canting hypocrites at the behest of a gang of common

          3  school yard bullies purely for punitive purposes.

          4                 It is put forth not to protect the

          5  public from smoke, it is put forth with the specific

          6  purpose of inconveniencing and humiliating smokers.

          7  Anyone who says otherwise is a liar.

          8                 Reasonable restrictions on smoking

          9  imposed by a business owner are not only acceptable

         10  but desirable. To ban smoking in bars goes beyond

         11  the bounds of reason. Might as well ban cheering at

         12  sporting events on the grounds that the noise

         13  pollution might damage employees eardrums.

         14                 I can ascribe not one jot of

         15  integrity to this draconian legislation. I do not

         16  believe that if proponents are motivated by the

         17  least spark of altruism, these people's motives are

         18  malice and spite.

         19                 We all remember that back in the

         20  school yard when we were children there were always

         21  a few kids that everybody enjoyed picking on, and

         22  let's face it, the temptation was almost

         23  irresistible. It's fun to oppress someone you know

         24  can't hit back. It feels good. That is what is going

         25  on here.
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          2                 The people who promote this

          3  legislation are morally indistinguishable from the

          4  big kids who enjoy smashing smaller kids' for the

          5  pleasure of making them cry. They are giving smokers

          6  the business, not because doing so redowns to the

          7  common wheel, but because they are the kind of

          8  people who enjoy giving other people the business.

          9                 If they ever get done with us, I

         10  promise you, some other group of people will be

         11  next.

         12                 Legislators, meanwhile, are often

         13  afraid to resist, because they anticipate that their

         14  opponents could then say, he voted against clean

         15  air, he voted against saving lives, and thus they

         16  might enact legislation that they know to be

         17  malicious because to oppose it would cause them to

         18  be mocked and vilified by those very bullies who are

         19  egging them on.

         20                 It's exactly what went on back at

         21  that school playground. If you refuse to partake, if

         22  you refuse to pick on the smaller kid, or advise the

         23  bigger kids to back off, you risk being called a

         24  sissy and maybe you risk being set upon yourself,

         25  and, so, some of us partook.
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          2                 But remember also what your parents

          3  said to you with regard to this kind of behavior.

          4  They would tell you you know it's wrong to be a

          5  bully. No matter what people say, no matter how they

          6  threaten you, you must have the courage to do the

          7  right thing.

          8                 I conjure you to vote down this

          9  proposal. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The next witness,

         11  please.

         12                 MR. SCHRAND: My name is Jay Schrand,

         13  I'm a systems engineer, graduate statistic student,

         14  an older one, if you will. I'm also a veteran and I

         15  live in Virginia, and I came up here in support of

         16  my fellow veterans who, to be quite honest with you,

         17  I understand the VFW is supposed to be here and they

         18  couldn't make it. The veterans groups just learned

         19  about this legislation recently that it might affect

         20  the private clubs, and they're going to need a

         21  little bit more time, and I'm very concerned about

         22  veterans because in the service we had, we were

         23  exposed to quite a bit of stress and sleep

         24  disruption, and we also have a very high rate of

         25  tobacco use. We're also very resistant to the
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          2  current smoking cessation methods, which only work

          3  15 to 30 percent of the time in the first place, and

          4  depend on very perfect behavior.

          5                 We had to be very perfect during the

          6  military, during bootcamp, we learned to left face,

          7  right face, salute somebody that calls us a worm,

          8  you know, bordering on abuse, and because of that

          9  stress, we do, you know, tend to smoke more and are

         10  more seriously compulsed. I don't want to say

         11  addicted, that's kind of a colorful word here.

         12                 I'm especially concerned about what's

         13  going to be happening in the veterans' posts and the

         14  bars that veterans tend to frequent, where they

         15  socialize with our fellow comrads here.

         16                 We deserve, you know, we fought for

         17  this freedom and we deserve to have that freedom

         18  also. And as far as I'm concerned, it doesn't

         19  require anymore restrictions that this law is going

         20  to provide here. There are already plenty of freedom

         21  of choices that we have in our every day life. You

         22  choose to go to a bar that smokes, or choose to go

         23  to a bar that doesn't smoke, they are already

         24  currently available.

         25                 I would certainly, myself, I would
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          2  ask that you not pass this law. To be honest with

          3  you, I don't want it coming down to Virginia. I

          4  don't want Virginia or New York to become like

          5  California.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And,

          8  sir, we wanted to very much make sure that the

          9  private clubs of all the various different types do

         10  get heard. So, if you have -- I'll have a member of

         11  my staff give you his card. If you have contacts,

         12  which we should reach out to, please let us know. I

         13  think it's pretty clear, I've taken a position in

         14  support of the bill, but we're trying very hard on

         15  the Health Committee with all of our staff to reach

         16  out to the other side to make sure they have an

         17  opportunity. So we didn't have a lot of contacts

         18  there, but any that you or anyone else had in that

         19  area would be most helpful, and if you would just

         20  see Peter after I finish, I would appreciate that

         21  very much.

         22                 MR. SCHAND: Thank you. I appreciate

         23  that, too. I've talked to a few of the veterans

         24  here, and they're aware of it now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.
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          2                 MR. SCHAND: They are mostly against

          3  it, but we have a few anti-smokers in the veterans

          4  group, too.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, they can

          6  come down, too.

          7                 MR. SCHAND: It will take a month or

          8  so to gain some consensus. They have to go to their

          9  leaders within the veterans community --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         11                 MR. SCHAND: -- Talk it over. It's a

         12  hot topic in the bars right now and you should hear

         13  from them soon.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, thank you.

         15                 Whoever would like to go next.

         16                 MR. HELFER: My name is Stephen

         17  Helfer.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Your button is on.

         19  You need to have the button off.

         20                 MR. HELFER: My name is Stephen

         21  Helfer. Anti-smokers have talked about how things

         22  will improve if we ban smoking here, there and

         23  everywhere. However, for example, James Repace, who

         24  testified tonight, he also testified when he worked

         25  at the EPA the air quality was so bad that he had to
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          2  wear a gas mask to work, and I believe he was

          3  bringing a lawsuit against the EPA for bad air

          4  quality. And I'm pretty sure there was no smoking

          5  going on at the EPA, because this was just a couple

          6  of years ago, it was on 60 Minutes.

          7                 In addition to that, in the last 20

          8  years, over 40 million Americans have given up

          9  smoking and smoking has been banned in many, many

         10  places, almost everywhere, everywhere but bars that

         11  is right now. Yet, the rate of asthma has gone up in

         12  these same 20 years 100 percent in adults and 175

         13  percent in children, and believe me, these are

         14  children who parents have made them very clear that

         15  they can't get near secondhand tobacco smoke.

         16                 We've talked about foreign visitors

         17  who all seem to smoke so much. I'm going to talk

         18  about the Japanese. The Japanese had the highest per

         19  capita consumption of cigarettes in the world, as

         20  many as -- excuse me, the developed world -- as many

         21  as 80 percent of Japanese men smoked in 1960, and

         22  about 60 percent do now. The Japanese have the

         23  highest life expectancy, the lowest rate of heart

         24  disease, and one of the lowest rates of lung cancer

         25  of the developed world.
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          2                 I'm going to read to you from an

          3  introduction that Dr. Demetrius  Tricopolos,

          4  Professor of Cancer Prevention, Harvard School of

          5  Public Health wrote to the book, the Mediterranean

          6  Diet Cook Book, "Men have longer life expectancies

          7  in Greece than in any other European or North

          8  American country. Even though Greek men have a

          9  notoriously high smoking rate, exercise irregularly

         10  and are served by a very modest health care system.

         11                 I'm sure all of you have heard of the

         12  "French Paradox" and those of us who go to France

         13  and see how many people smoke and how unrestrictedly

         14  they smoke, the French are not dying like flies,

         15  they have lire (sic) life expectancy than we do, and

         16  in addition to that, they have 50 percent less heart

         17  disease. That's men and women even with their very

         18  high smoking rates.

         19                 My last piece of evidence that I'm

         20  putting forward to you is about secondhand smoke,

         21  and I am reading from the March issue of the Times

         22  of London, and it goes, "A ten-year study carried

         23  out for the World Health Organization has failed to

         24  find a clear link between passive smoking and lung

         25  cancer. The results of the study, the largest in
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          2  Europe ever done hint that those who live or work

          3  near smokers have a slightly higher risk, but the

          4  margins of error are so great that nothing can be

          5  deduced from that.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          8                 MR. BRUNI: Good evening. My name is

          9  Robert Bruni. I represent the people who believe in

         10  the choice to smoke is a freedom, freedom in this

         11  country.

         12                 When I hear being addressed the

         13  situation, day by day, in fact, an economic impact

         14  in the industry who can provoke this ordinance.

         15                 In 1995 when the law passed, the

         16  restaurant business, being down 65 percent. After

         17  11,000 workers the restaurant and bars protects our

         18  site of this building, the ordinance indicate

         19  separate rooms for smokers, and separate room for no

         20  smokers.

         21                 The impact was terrible. Today we

         22  make a survive (sic) the 2,200 workers in the bars

         23  and restaurants in the five boroughs of Manhattan,

         24  and we found a surprise. 73.8 percent of the worker

         25  are smoking themselves. Who protecting? Two-thousand
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          2  people? Four-thousand people? How was the impact

          3  about the tourists, especially when they were South

          4  Americans who are a smoker? In each country in

          5  Europe after a meal, the waiters offer to you

          6  cigars. I don't see any statistics from Europe to

          7  say that people died like flies. And smoke for

          8  cigars was very strong, cigarettes more strong than

          9  America. So, what is here? Is restriction the rights

         10  of the people? The freedom to smoke or not smoke?

         11                 Why not create bars smoke-free and

         12  keep the status quo we have today. If people can

         13  choice (sic) to go to the bars or restaurants who

         14  have smokers, or going to a bar who is a smoke-free.

         15  It's a solution, I believe.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Are

         18  there any questions?

         19                 Council Member Oddo.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Dobrian,

         21  let's look at your testimony, shall we? "Canting

         22  hipocrites," so there's a little name-calling in

         23  it."One jot of integrity to this draconian

         24  legislation." So, there's a little spice of empty

         25  hyperbole."If they ever get done with us, I promise
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          2  you some other group will be next," the slippery

          3  slope argument. You hit the trifecta.

          4                 MR. DOBRIAN: That does not, sir,

          5  negate the validity of my presentation.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I have one

          7  question for you. Who is the incumbent in the Eighth

          8  Congressional District?

          9                 MR. DOBRIAN: A man named Mr. Nadler.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Any other

         12  questions for the panel?

         13                 Thank you all very much. If the four

         14  folks I called want to come up? I think it's Albert,

         15  Claire, Phil and Jeremy.

         16                 Go right ahead.

         17                 MR. HSU: Good evening. My name is

         18  Albert Hsu, and I'm a medical student living in the

         19  Bronx in Madeline Provenzano's district.

         20                 I am one of the former national

         21  presidents of the Asian Pacific American Medical

         22  Student Association, and I'm an active member of the

         23  Bronx County Medical Society, and the Medical

         24  Society of the State of New York and our American

         25  Medical Association.
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          2                 You don't really need statistics from

          3  me because I'm sure you've heard tons of them all

          4  day, so I'd like to respond to the libertarian

          5  fellow that has such vehement testimony.

          6                 You've heard a lot all day today

          7  about personal liberties, about choice, about

          8  freedom, and those are compelling emotional

          9  arguments. I agree that when I first read this

         10  legislation myself I felt that was a little

         11  draconian, cigar bars, private clubs. You know, if

         12  you don't hurt anybody else, then what's the

         13  problem?

         14                 Indeed, I believe that we're all

         15  self-destructive in our own ways. People gamble,

         16  people drink. I procrastinate a lot. There are

         17  people who are obsessive compulsive, but here's my

         18  point: Why are people against drunk driving? If

         19  drunk drivers just hit trees then only our friends

         20  in the Sierra Club would have a problem with it.

         21  But, no, you hurt innocent people. Lots of people

         22  die from drunk driving. And there's no personal

         23  liberty, there's no choice, there's no freedom to

         24  drive while intoxicated.

         25                 Smoking and secondhand smoke are more
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          2  insidious. You don't kill people violently, but

          3  secondhand smoke kills people all the same. In fact,

          4  secondhand smoke is arguably worse than smoking

          5  directly because you don't have a filter to protect

          6  yourself from the carcinogens.

          7                 The Medical Society of the State of

          8  New York and the Medical Student Section of MSSNY,

          9  are firmly against smoking in bars and restaurants,

         10  and I'm personally thinking that, you know, cigar

         11  bars are okay, as long as they're self-served and no

         12  one has to be in there serving them and breathing in

         13  all the secondhand smoke.

         14                 I do believe in personal liberties,

         15  but I don't think you have a liberty to harm other

         16  people. And, so, I thank you, the Mayor, and

         17  everybody else, for bringing this legislation and I

         18  strongly support passing the bill. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Go right ahead.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 MS. MILLMAN: Thank you. I am Claire

         22  Millman, President of the Alliance for Smoke-Free

         23  Air and probably of all people presenting testimony

         24  today, the person having been actively involved in

         25  this prominent health issue the longest, 28 plus
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          2  years. Throughout all these years, from our initial

          3  appeal for and subsequent strengthening of tobacco

          4  control legislation in Suffolk, Nassau, New York

          5  City, and New York State, I have, therefore, heard

          6  all the opposition arguments, seen them all proven

          7  invalid, as smoke-free has become justifiably the

          8  norm in many venues in our environment.

          9                 What has changed since the last

         10  strengthening of smoke-free restrictions here,

         11  substantially increased mountain of scientific

         12  evidence, especially within just this year from

         13  studies worldwide where the disease and death caused

         14  by secondhand smoke, including the variety of other

         15  cancers, in addition to lung cancers, a much larger

         16  incidence of fatal and non-fatal heart attacks than

         17  previously known, and the fact that even short-term

         18  exposure to secondhand smoke adversely affects the

         19  heart.

         20                 Substantially increased reported

         21  costs to this nation of tobacco smoking, $157.4

         22  billion every year in health care costs and lost

         23  productivity, and the number of deaths attributed to

         24  secondhand smoke, 65,000 each year.

         25                 Substantially increased evidence of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            308

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  benefits to business coming from additional studies

          3  of the many more localities where smoke-free

          4  restaurants and bars have become a normal, healthy

          5  way of life.

          6                 Substantially increased demand by the

          7  public for totally smoke-free places to protect the

          8  health of every worker and patron.

          9                 Fact: This is a major health issue.

         10  There is no safe level of exposure to secondhand

         11  smoke. And civilized society acts in accordance with

         12  increased knowledge re the necessity to protect the

         13  health of its people.

         14                 Going smoke-free saves lives,

         15  protects against disease and costs nothing. The only

         16  business adversely impacted is the tobacco business.

         17  Big tobacco's intense battles and tremendous

         18  expenditure of money to defeat or weaken these laws

         19  are testament to their effectiveness.

         20                 Throughout our country in localities

         21  where strong restrictions on smoking are the law,

         22  smoking has been reduced dramatically, while

         23  protecting non-smokers, the laws provide incentives

         24  for smokers to quit, and in an internal documented

         25  dated 1992, Philip Morris quoted its own research
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          2  that "total prohibition of smoking in the workplace,

          3  strongly affects industry volume.

          4                 Smokers facing these restrictions

          5  consumed 11 to 15 percent less than average, and

          6  quit at a rate that is 84 percent higher than

          7  average.

          8                 Milder workplace restrictions, such

          9  as smoking only in designated areas, have much less

         10  impact on quitting rates, and very little effect on

         11  consumption."

         12                 Please pass this law in its entirety.

         13  It's a life-saving bill, and will be one of the most

         14  significant contributions to the health of not only

         15  the residents and visitors of New York City but will

         16  serve as a role model worldwide.

         17                 I am enclosing the report.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 MR. KONIGSBERG: Council Member and

         21  Chair Quinn, thank you for hearing us today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         23                 MR. KONIGSBERG: My name is Phil

         24  Konigsberg, I'm the President of the Bay Terrace

         25  Community Alliance, also a member of Community Board

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            310

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  7, and I'd like to comment ahead of my testimony.

          3                 There was some talk earlier about

          4  some community boards that have taken a poll and

          5  then made presentations.

          6                 We had a couple announcements this

          7  Monday at the Community Board 7 in Queens,

          8  announcing the hearing was coming up but we did not

          9  take a poll. Hopefully for the next hearing I'll

         10  have initiated something from Community Board 7.

         11                 I'm speaking in favor, obviously, of

         12  Intro. 256. Since the early 1990s, I have been

         13  testifying before the Health Committee in behalf of

         14  smoke-free and/or tobacco control legislation. And

         15  Council Member Oddo, we've been here many times

         16  before, never have I been so encouraged as I have

         17  been in the last few months, as I've witnessed this

         18  Administration succeed in raising the cigarette tax

         19  so extraordinarily high, how great that was to see,

         20  because it's definitely having an impact on cutting

         21  down people, the younger kids from smoking. They

         22  just can't afford it. In my mind, that was a great

         23  move.

         24                 This was a courageous step, but

         25  apparently only the beginning. Now before us today,
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          2  you are listening to the public say we want a

          3  smoke-free workplace for all workers, not just some

          4  but all workers, hopefully the entire downstate area

          5  of New York will pass similar smoke-free workplace

          6  legislation, as Nassau County did earlier this week,

          7  and I congratulate Claire Millman for Nassau County

          8  being the first county that acted so strong. We need

          9  to follow next.

         10                 Then perhaps our Governor will

         11  finally agree to sign a statewide smoke-free

         12  workplace law. He has had the opportunity, he has

         13  not. We need to send a message up to Albany.

         14                 I encourage you to move on this as

         15  soon as possible, so the senseless death and disease

         16  caused by breathing secondhand smoke will be

         17  reduced.

         18                 For those of the hospitality

         19  industry, we're still buying the economic issue fear

         20  tactic pushed by the tobacco industry. It is time to

         21  open your eyes and breathe the fresh air.

         22                 Going by numerous sales tax

         23  statistics -- I'm looking at the clock -- from

         24  California and Delaware, smoke-free workplace air is

         25  good for business. Personally, as of March 1st,
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          2  2003, my friends and family know we will be able to

          3  go a few miles east of where we live and have a

          4  smoke-free meal in the restaurants across the Nassau

          5  County Line. If anyone is concerned about economic

          6  issues, that's something to think about.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could sum

          8  up, please?

          9                 MR. KONIGSBERG: Sure.

         10                 In closing, I'd just like to say that

         11  we need to do something to get smoke-free air for

         12  all workers.

         13                 And if I can just seguay, this is not

         14  the hearing for this, but as a health consideration,

         15  please consider a law for banning smoking in cars

         16  where children are in New York City. That is

         17  something we need to do also. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 Go right ahead.

         20                 MR. BOHEN: My name is Jeremy Bohen. I

         21  am 32 years old, I was born and raised in Staten

         22  Island, as was Mr. Oddo. I've been a bartender for

         23  the past seven years and today I represent in

         24  unanimity the bar staff of the Houston's Restaurant

         25  at 27th Street and Park Avenue South.
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          2                 We're a large restaurant that also

          3  has a large bar area. The smoke that is present in

          4  the bar area is prevalent throughout the restaurant.

          5  So, the idea that smoking in one part of a room and

          6  not another is a solution to the problem of

          7  secondhand smoke is quite ludicrous, from my

          8  personal experience.

          9                 It's interesting that I'm here today,

         10  because up until about a year ago, I would have

         11  vehemently opposed any type of ban on smoking in my

         12  workplace, because I felt that that ban would hinder

         13  my ability to make a living.

         14                 About a year ago I took a vacation to

         15  Chata, Massachusetts, which is on Cape Cod, and that

         16  township does have a complete ban on smoking in at

         17  least bars and restaurants, I don't know about other

         18  workplaces. Went into a bar with my fiance' to watch

         19  the World Series there last November, and after a

         20  couple of minutes I realized what was different

         21  about this bar was that there was no smoke in here.

         22  And I said to the bartender, you know, what's the

         23  story, do people just not smoke in this town? And he

         24  said, no, they're not allowed to smoke in a bar or a

         25  restaurant in this town. And I said, wow, that's got
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          2  to be killing you. You know, how do you make a

          3  living that way? And he said, as a matter of fact,

          4  the opposite is true. My income has increased, and

          5  since the ban went into effect, and in fact I find

          6  that more people come into this bar because they

          7  were turned off in the past by the presence of

          8  smoke.

          9                 Just because someone doesn't smoke

         10  doesn't mean that they don't enjoy food and beverage

         11  and the socialization that goes on in a bar

         12  atmosphere.

         13                 So, I would just like to add the

         14  voice of the 14 members of my bar staff, as well as

         15  my own, in encouraging you, please, not to

         16  compromise this bill when it goes to the City

         17  Council as a whole, and please understand the

         18  ramifications to the health of the workers of the

         19  City of New York, as well as to the income and the

         20  ability to earn a living of the workers of the City

         21  of New York.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         24                 I just wanted to ask, I think I've

         25  called the names of all of the people who signed
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          2  slips in opposition to the bill. I don't know if

          3  there's anyone -- have you guys signed slips? Let me

          4  run through the names again.

          5                 Is Carl Jones here? Okay. Mimi

          6  Burnham? Morgan McLean? Michelle Bell? Ken Tirado?

          7  Edward Coccoran? Matthew Boccaccio? Okay, why don't

          8  you come on up. Dorothy Kuminsky? Robert Bruni, Joe

          9  -- they already testified.

         10                 Okay, why don't you just testify, and

         11  then after you testify, just fill out slips, okay?

         12  So we have a record of it.

         13                 And then they're going to be followed

         14  by Dr. Joyce Shriver, Richard Toes. I'm not sure how

         15  to pronounce the first name, Cisse Diombera, Richard

         16  Lou and Whinnie Lam. Those five folks will be after

         17  these three folks.

         18                 Whoever would like to start, go right

         19  ahead. Make sure the light is off and then the mic

         20  is on.

         21                 MR. BOCCACCIO: Basically the thing

         22  that disturbs me about this debate --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just identify

         24  yourself for the record.

         25                 MR. BOCCACCIO: Oh, I'm sorry. Matthew
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          2  Boccaccio, citizen, public citizen -- is the lack of

          3  a talk of a compromise.

          4                 I see the stickers that say that 73

          5  percent of the people that are for a smoke-free New

          6  York --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Hang on one

          8  second.

          9                 If we could have quiet in the

         10  Chambers, I'm having a little trouble hearing the

         11  folks who are testifying, please.

         12                 Thank you. Sorry.

         13                 MR. BOCCACCIO: Thanks.

         14                 The idea is like I don't know how

         15  this would work out in terms of City ordinance or

         16  laws, but how come there can't be certain taverns

         17  and bars that are set aside where smoking is allowed

         18  to exist? Because there are people who work in the

         19  service industry who smoke, and there's owners who

         20  smoke, and they want to be able to smoke on the job

         21  and they want to be able to be in those

         22  environments. And if those places are set up, if

         23  they're taxed and regulated and zoned, much like

         24  liquor laws or the way sex shops are that were moved

         25  out of Times Square, whatever, I don't see why if
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          2  they exist and people have choices, and they don't

          3  have to go in those bars, they don't have to work in

          4  those bars, they don't have to exist anywhere near

          5  them, therefore, the secondhand smoke is not imposed

          6  on them.

          7                 They have it the other way around.

          8  For me says that, I understand that secondhand smoke

          9  can be a risk for life, but it's like, if we have

         10  these choices, then if everybody has a choice, to me

         11  then nobody is being imposed upon and everybody has

         12  rights. And it's more like a question of why this

         13  debate hasn't come up of a compromise where if we

         14  set it up this way, nobody is forced to suffer

         15  anybody else's vice in an unhealthy way, and that's

         16  more of a question as it is a comment on statistics

         17  either way. And I'm wondering, maybe if you can

         18  briefly just say why this hasn't been considered?

         19                 And I've been following the debate

         20  through the papers and through the websites of the

         21  City Council for awhile here.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The bill was

         23  introduced in August and this is the bill's first

         24  hearing, so it's really kind of like at the

         25  beginning, you know, of the process, so typically
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          2  bills are heard and then there's, you know,

          3  discussions between people who have proposed it,

          4  opponents, et cetera, you have other hearings, other

          5  versions come forward, so it's kind of the beginning

          6  of that process. And I can't say there will or won't

          7  be a compromise, but we're at the beginning of the

          8  process and part of the process is to hear people's

          9  suggestions and opinions on whether things should

         10  stay as they are, be changed, how they should be

         11  changed, not be changed. So...

         12                 MR. BOCCACCIO: I can appreciate that.

         13  But what I haven't heard, like I've heard let's

         14  outlaw it in a restaurant but bars and taverns are

         15  remiss, and it's like a whole coverage of bars and

         16  taverns. And I'm all for having some bars and

         17  taverns that are smoke-free, people want to just go

         18  out and have a drink, and there's a couple set

         19  aside. And if, like I said, if there's a 73 percent

         20  who want a smoke-free New York, make it 80 percent,

         21  say four-fifths of all establishments are smoke-free

         22  and there's another fifth there where people have

         23  choices. And I'm just trying to understand why that

         24  isn't -- when I don't hear that compromise being

         25  discussed, then it sort of lends on not being
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          2  accusatory, but it sort of lends a perception that

          3  maybe this isn't about health, it's just more about,

          4  you know, I don't like this, so I want to impose

          5  this ban. It sort of like starts to flow in that

          6  direction. You know, it's something obviously nobody

          7  can prove, it's just I'm not hearing a fair

          8  compromise being discussed, and I'm just wondering

          9  if there's maybe laws that exist that you can do

         10  that in certain, you know, districts or

         11  jurisdictions or stuff like that.

         12                 So, that's basically my, that's

         13  basically my comment about the question. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         15                 MR. LESCZYNSKI: My name is Jim

         16  Lesczynski, and I'm a former City Council candidate

         17  and an activist with the Manhattan Libertarian

         18  Party.

         19                 Some of you may remember us from the

         20  great cigarette give-away we sponsored here earlier

         21  this year, in which the Libertarian Party handed out

         22  free packs of cigarettes outside City Hall in

         23  protest to Mayor Bloomberg's obscenely punitive tax

         24  hike on smokers.

         25                 Here we are again a few months later,
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          2  and our Mayor is once again attacking the rights of

          3  New Yorkers.

          4                 However, I am not here today to

          5  defend smokers, although they are by and large good

          6  citizens who have never hurt anyone, except possibly

          7  themselves.

          8                 I am here today to defend property

          9  owners, and the importance of property rights in a

         10  just and precivilization.

         11                 One of the traits that separates a

         12  free society from a socialist state, or a futile

         13  system is the right to own private property. If that

         14  right is to have any meaning at all, then property

         15  owners must have the right to decide what behavior

         16  is or is not allowed on their property.

         17                 If government, rather than the

         18  rightful owner makes those decisions, then private

         19  property ownership becomes a sham in New York City.

         20                 When people enter a bar, restaurant,

         21  office, nightclub, or even one of the private clubs

         22  where smoking would be prohibitive under this

         23  proposal, each person does so under his or her own

         24  free will. That goes for employees or customers

         25  alike.
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          2                 If you don't want to work in a

          3  smoking environment, don't take a job where your

          4  employer allows smoking. It's as simple as that.

          5                 To say that this bill is intended to

          6  protect the bartenders I find absurd. Most

          7  bartenders I've ever met all smoke. Nobody is

          8  putting a gun to anyone's head and forcing them into

          9  a smoky bar. The only guns are those belonging to

         10  the government, which would use its power of force

         11  to enforce a prohibition on consensual behavior.

         12                 As I understand it, Mayor Bloomberg

         13  owns quite a bit of property himself. He has every

         14  right to set whatever smoking policy he likes in his

         15  own homes and businesses, but he must not take that

         16  right away from the other property owners.

         17                 The Mayor's Office does not come with

         18  a deed to every building in the City. This proposal

         19  wreaks like a cheap cigar. It wreaks with contempt

         20  for the rights of the people. I urge you to vote

         21  against it.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MR. KRAMER: Hello. Good evening. My

         24  name is Harold Kramer, and along with my wife Ria,

         25  we run and own the bar Raven in the East Village in
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          2  Manhattan on East 12th Street and Avenue A.

          3                 I was born and raised in Brooklyn. My

          4  aunt and uncle ran the Thunderbolt Rollercoaster in

          5  Coney Island. My grandparents ran a candy toy store

          6  with a soda fountain in Clinton Road in Brooklyn. I

          7  went to P.S. 99, John Dewey High School and

          8  graduated Brooklyn College in 1981. I'm a real New

          9  Yorker.

         10                 I opposed to this smoking ban, and

         11  I'll tell you why. First of all, I'm not a smoker,

         12  okay? I don't like cigarettes, the cigarette effect.

         13  But things -- I am a bar owner and things have been

         14  really tough since 9/11. It seems every time I turn

         15  around another customer has been laid off, or worse,

         16  leaving town because there is no work here.

         17                 Lloyds of London refuses to write

         18  risk policies for bars after 9/11. As a result, my

         19  risk insurance has doubled. Also, the fee for our

         20  liquor license has gone up. Then we have the usual

         21  sales tax, commercial rent tax, rent, utilities,

         22  liquor bills, and the list goes on.

         23                 What I am looking at is rising costs

         24  and a diminished customer base. I am deathly afraid

         25  that this proposed pan will hurt my business even
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          2  further.

          3                 If this is such a great idea, why

          4  haven't any bars instituted a voluntary ban on

          5  smoking? The answer is easy: People who frequent

          6  bars, that is people who like to drink, also like to

          7  smoke. So do all of my employees. I am the only one

          8  in that bar who doesn't smoke. All of my bartenders

          9  smoke.

         10                 There are people who will tell you

         11  that the airlines were saying the same thing about

         12  losing business because of a smoking ban, and the

         13  theater owners and sports complexes and so on. There

         14  is a big difference, though. If a smoker needs to

         15  get to LA or Paris, he has no choice, he's got to

         16  fly. But my customers do have a choice, they can buy

         17  a bottle and stay at home. And some said they will.

         18  Maybe some customers will come back, maybe not. I

         19  don't know. I can't afford to find out. I can't even

         20  afford to lose two customers these days. Business is

         21  really tight.

         22                 This ban will place an unfair burden

         23  on bar owners. We, the bar owners, have been offered

         24  nothing. We are expected to enforce this law that is

         25  going to alienate 90 percent of our customers. That
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          2  is not fair. It is not the American way.

          3                 I say let's compromise. I suggest and

          4  exhaust system suitable to the size of the place.

          5  These systems are not perfect but they do make the

          6  place healthier.

          7                 And Mayor Bloomberg pointed out that

          8  the air in the Holland Tunnel is safer to breathe at

          9  rush hour than a smoky bar. The reason is there is

         10  ventilation systems in that tunnel and in all of the

         11  tunnels, so if ventilation systems work for auto

         12  exhaust, I would think they could work for cigarette

         13  smoke.

         14                 I just want the Council to think

         15  about this: Between East 12th Street and East 14th

         16  Street where my bar is, there are no less than 12

         17  bars and restaurants on a two-block stretch. Picture

         18  a sidewalk congested with groups of people in

         19  various stages of intoxication going out for a

         20  smoke. Think about the quality of life issues.

         21                 And who will bear the brunt from the

         22  complaints from the complaints from the neighbors?

         23  The bar owners.

         24                 I just want to direct you to the

         25  clipping from what I included here.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could just

          3  sum up?

          4                 MR. KRAMER: Okay, summing up, I just

          5  want to ask the Council, if my business suffers

          6  because of this ban, who will help me?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          8                 If the five folks that have now come

          9  up, thank you.

         10                 Dr. Shriver, sorry I missed your card

         11  before.

         12                 If there are any folks in the

         13  audience who want to testify in opposition, please

         14  fill out slips, because as it now stands, I don't

         15  have any other slips for people who are in the room

         16  and would like to testify in opposition. So, if you

         17  are and you do, please go see the Sergeant, and fill

         18  out a slip.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 Dr. Shriver, why don't you go first,

         21  please.

         22                 DR. SHRIVER: I'm Joyce Shriver, and

         23  I've been on the faculty of the Mount Sinai School

         24  of Medicine my entire professional life.

         25                 I've also been down here since the
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          2  mid-nineties testifying before the Health Committee

          3  about the importance of a smoke-free environment and

          4  the danger of cigarette smoke.

          5                 So, today I think that we have one of

          6  the most important opportunities to pass a bill that

          7  will have very wide sweeping change.

          8                 Every person has a right to a

          9  smoke-free environment. This includes persons in

         10  restaurants, bowling allies, Bingo halls, all

         11  workplaces.

         12                 This is a basic right based on

         13  health. We constantly hear people talking about this

         14  will affect my business. How selfish can you be? One

         15  human life is much more important than your

         16  business. And I think you better increase your

         17  perspective a little bit. I've worked very hard all

         18  my life and I know a job is very important. But for

         19  you to feel it's okay. To kill and maim other people

         20  so you have a viable business, I think that's very,

         21  very selfish.

         22                 This is a health issue. We now know

         23  that secondhand smoke is full of carcinogens, we

         24  know that it's a dangerous, if not more dangerous

         25  than direct smoke.
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          2                 A lot of simplistic ideas have been

          3  proposed today about ventilation, about having a

          4  separation of smokers and non-smokers. The bottom

          5  line is many people don't have the choice to go out

          6  and find a job in a smoke-free environment. They do

          7  have a right to go and be entitled not to have an

          8  evening full of Class A carcinogens just to have a

          9  job, or just to enjoy the evening. Intro. 256

         10  addresses health and not business issues, and I

         11  think as individuals we all have the right to

         12  protect our health. Breathe air with caution. The

         13  medical and scientific communities have determined

         14  that air contaminated with secondhand smoke is

         15  dangerous to your health. Help us support health by

         16  supporting Intro. 256.

         17                 Thank you very much, Chair Quinn, and

         18  your Committee, for this opportunity. Please pass

         19  it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Doctor, what kind

         21  of doctor are you?

         22                 DR. SHRIVER: A neuroscientist.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         24                 We could have Mr. Toes go now and

         25  then we'll hear from the four folks from the
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          2  Coalition.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 Wait. Let me do the clock thing. Wait

          5  a minute.

          6                 MR. TOES: Good evening. My name is

          7  Richard Toes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Is your mic on?

          9  The light should be off.

         10                 MR. TOES: Yes, it's off.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         12                 MR. TOES: My name is Richard Toes. I

         13  live and work in New York City.

         14                 For the past 22 years I have been

         15  employed in the hospitality industry, as a waiter,

         16  club owner and as a bartender.

         17                 I am here today to ask you to pass

         18  the smoke-free workplace act of 2002, Intro. 256.

         19                 Am I a bad person because I'm a

         20  bartender? What did I do that is so wrong that I

         21  must decide between having a decent paying job that

         22  I enjoy and substantially increasing my risk of

         23  cancer and lung disease. All I want is the same

         24  right to a safe smoke-free workplace that you enjoy

         25  and that millions of others enjoy.
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          2                 Why am I and those with jobs like

          3  mine being excluded from this basic right? In every

          4  workplace there are those who want to breathe clean

          5  air and those who want to pollute. I'm asking you

          6  members of the City Council to step into this debate

          7  and decide that the right to breathe clean air is

          8  more important than the right to pollute.

          9                 You have done it already for almost

         10  every other workplace. Please do it now for me.

         11                 I assure you that the people who work

         12  in bars, restaurants and nightclubs are all good

         13  people. We deserve a safe, healthy, smoke-free

         14  workplace. It's the right thing to do. Please do it

         15  now.

         16                 Many other hospitality workers would

         17  like to stand up for their right to a safe,

         18  smoke-free workplace, but they are afraid they will

         19  be fired if they do.

         20                 Unfortunately, you won't hear from as

         21  many of us as they're actually are. Instead you will

         22  hear from many against clean air who either smoke,

         23  or are trying to please their bosses.

         24                 The issue is simple, and no different

         25  than it was for other workplaces where you have
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          2  already taken action. Some people are in favor of

          3  allowing smoking, someone to breathe clean air. We

          4  are asking you to decide which is fair - the right

          5  to breathe clean air, or the right to pollute.

          6  Please don't treat me like a second class citizen,

          7  because you may think your job is more noble than

          8  mine.

          9                 The health of all workers is equally

         10  important. Please give all workers the same right

         11  that you won years ago, the right to a safe, healthy

         12  workplace.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 Just one second, please.

         17                 Mr. Toes, could I ask you to switch

         18  your seat, if you don't mind, with the gentleman who

         19  is coming up?

         20                 MR. TOES: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Let me

         22  reset. And before the next three witnesses testify,

         23  I will say it's nice to see my friends again from

         24  the Coalition, myself and some of the young people

         25  here were on the road last year. We did five
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          2  hearings in all five of the boroughs on the Mayor's

          3  proposed budget for the Department of Health and

          4  Health and Hospitals Corporation, and at every

          5  single public hearing, the young people from the

          6  reality check and the Coalition were there. Each

          7  borough was all young people who live in that

          8  borough. They were really terrific, and the million

          9  dollars, which I wish it was more that we were able

         10  to get back in the budget for public education

         11  programs urging people not to smoke or quit smoking,

         12  and I think it was largely due to all of your

         13  efforts.

         14                 So, I never got to thank you in

         15  person, so I'm going to take this opportunity to

         16  thank you today.

         17                 So, thank you very much. And we'll

         18  allow that applause. I encourage it.

         19                 Thank you. And, so, you guys should

         20  go in whatever order you want.

         21                 MS. DIOMBERA: Hi. My name is Cisse

         22  Diombera, and I'm a part of a group called Reality

         23  Check, and here are my peers sitting behind me.

         24                 Reality Check is a youth-led adult

         25  supported movement about exposing the deceptive
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          2  marketing practices of big tobacco companies, and

          3  how they manipulate teens into smoking and into

          4  getting hurt.

          5                 I'm here to talk to you about Intro.

          6  256, to amend the Administrative code of New York

          7  City in relation to the prohibition of smoking in

          8  public places and places of employment.

          9                 Non-smokers have no choice but to

         10  inhale the air that is being infected by thousands

         11  of chemicals in cigarettes. Two of my sisters happen

         12  to be waitresses and work in the common restaurants

         13  called Red Lobster, in the Bronx, and a restaurant

         14  in Long Island called Cirella's.

         15                 I'm worried about the effect that the

         16  cigarettes have on my sisters' health and their

         17  ability to live a healthy life, as the result of the

         18  exposure to secondhand smoke.

         19                 Soon I'll be entering the work field,

         20  and I ask you, the body of New York City who passes

         21  the law to protect my right to help me go into a

         22  smoke-free workplace. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 MS. LAM: Good evening. I would like
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          2  to thank the New York City Council for allowing me

          3  the opportunity to speak here today.

          4                 My name is Winnie Lam. I am 17, and I

          5  am a resident of Richmond County. I am proud to say

          6  that I am a member of Reality Check. If you look to

          7  my right, my fellow Reality Check members strongly

          8  support Intro. 256 as well.

          9                 I am also a waitress at a small

         10  family-owned restaurant that practices a strict

         11  no-smoking policy.

         12                 I didn't realize how fortunate I was

         13  to work in a smoke-free environment until my best

         14  friend Suzanne, began working as a waitress as well.

         15                 The restaurant that Suzanne works for

         16  has both smoking and non-smoking sections, and many

         17  times she must serve customers that smoke

         18  cigarettes. So, for hours at a time, Suzanne must

         19  have breathed in secondhand smoke, which I have

         20  learned can cause serious medical problems,

         21  including cancer.

         22                 I know that the smoke is beginning to

         23  affect her, because she is constantly coughing and

         24  is always out of breath.

         25                 I am concerned that my best friend's
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          2  after school job, is going to cause serious damage

          3  to her health. Luckily, this very issue of smoking

          4  where people work has become the focus of new

          5  legislation that you, members of the City Council,

          6  have the responsibility of addressing. I ask that

          7  when deciding on this issue, that you keep in mind

          8  the many of the waiters and waitresses at your

          9  favorite restaurants, are young people like Suzanne

         10  and me. We are young people that have dreams of

         11  going on to college and pursuing careers.

         12                 However, if we were to become sick,

         13  specifically from secondhand smoke, those dreams

         14  could be cut short or never even realized.

         15                 Earlier a testimony was given and a

         16  speaker made a very important point. I quote, "This

         17  is the real world." True, this is the real world.

         18  Well, I think this real world needs a reality check.

         19  Many of my peers work in smoking environments and

         20  they are getting sick. When deciding, ask yourself,

         21  would you want your son or daughter working in an

         22  environment that you knew was unhealthy or even

         23  hazardous to their health. I don't think you would.

         24                 That is why I asked on behalf of

         25  myself, my best friends, and all the young people
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          2  who work or will work in New York City, that you

          3  protect our futures by making all workplaces in our

          4  City smoke-free. After all, the young people are the

          5  future of New York. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 Go ahead. Thank you.

          8                 MR. LOU: I would like to thank the

          9  City Council for allowing me to testify today. My

         10  name is Richard Lou, and I'm 17 years old. I am also

         11  a member of Reality Check. I work in a restaurant on

         12  Staten Island where the customers smoke. Working in

         13  a restaurant is one of the few jobs that allow the

         14  time flexibility to work without interfering with my

         15  studies. I am not a smoker, and I never want to be;

         16  however, while I'm helping customers, the only way

         17  to avoid being a smoker, a secondhand smoker that

         18  is, is to hold my breath.

         19                 Obviously, neither my co-workers nor

         20  I could hold our breaths for the five or ten minutes

         21  the customers take to smoke a cigarette.

         22                 The smoke lingers after they have

         23  finished the cigarette so it seems as if at least

         24  one person is smoking all the time.

         25                 I've learned that secondhand smoke is
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          2  especially harmful to those of us who have to

          3  breathe it in on the job.

          4                 I'm not working to lose my health,

          5  I'm working to earn money. My co-workers work for

          6  the same reason. We are all healthy young adults and

          7  we have not and will not let secondhand smoking take

          8  away our lives.

          9                 Right now we try to handle this

         10  problem by politely asking smokers to step outside

         11  and smoke there. Many do not comply and simply reply

         12  with, "it is my right to smoke." Reality Check: It

         13  is also my right to breathe clean air.

         14                 It shouldn't be our job to handle the

         15  problem of secondhand smoke exposure.

         16                 Being 17 I do not want the

         17  responsibility of informing these careless smokers

         18  that their disastrous habit is also detrimental to

         19  the people on the job whom they blow their smoke at.

         20                 We need you, the concerned members of

         21  the City Council, to handle this problem for us.

         22                 I not only ask that you consider me,

         23  but I ask that you consider the mothers, fathers,

         24  daughters and sons of those of us that work in many

         25  of the New York restaurants and bars as well. My
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          2  friends and I are supporting this legislation. Do we

          3  look malicious?

          4                 We are supporting this bill, because

          5  we, the non-smokers, care about our health. Do I

          6  look like I'm a liar? I assure you I am not. Do I

          7  look like I'm a bully? I assure you I'm as

          8  benevolent as Mickey Mouse. I will greatly

          9  appreciate this legislation being passed so that all

         10  workers can enjoy a healthy smoke-free environment.

         11                 Thank you, again, for hearing my

         12  testimony today.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         14                 MR. NARCISSE: I am 17 years old and

         15  believe in fairness in the future. I understand.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you just state

         17  your name for the record. I'm sorry.

         18                 MR. NARCISSE: Oh, I'm sorry.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's okay.

         20                 MR. NARCISSE: Candier Narcisse. I am

         21  17 years old and I believe in fairness and the

         22  future. I understand that 1,000 New Yorkers die

         23  needlessly every year from exposure to secondhand

         24  smoking, robbing them of their future.

         25                 I also understand that 1 million

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            338

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  workers remain unprotected by the law from the

          3  hazardous of second and wonder how fair this is.

          4                 I don't understand why any City would

          5  allow this. There are lots of reasons why jobs of

          6  waiters and waitresses and bartenders concern kids.

          7  Many of us have parents who work in the hospitality

          8  industry. Many of us, our sisters and brothers and

          9  extended family, work in the restaurants and bars.

         10  Many of us now and in the future will also work in

         11  the restaurants or bars, whether it's as a full-time

         12  position or to supplement our income through school

         13  or when we have families.

         14                 We need your protection now. Everyone

         15  agrees that secondhand smoking is a Class A

         16  carcinogen, and not safe at any level. So, why force

         17  people to breathe in poison on their job.

         18                 Why make people leave their jobs to

         19  stay healthy, when the solution is simple: Ban use

         20  of poison where it affects others.

         21                 We have been reading the newspapers

         22  and have heard people say that the issue is about

         23  personal choice to smoker or that it's really just a

         24  nuisance.  It's neither. It's a serious health

         25  issue.
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          2                 Secondhand smoke causes heart

          3  disease, lung disease, cancer and death. How can you

          4  call this personal choice or compare it to a

          5  nuisance. We are young and believe in a political

          6  process. We believe that you will do the right thing

          7  and protect all workers, including our families and

          8  our futures by making New York City finally

          9  smoke-free.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. If I

         12  could just ask the other young people who are here

         13  with Reality Check just to stand up.

         14                 Thank you. Thank you. I think I speak

         15  for certainly the other members of the panel, Dr.

         16  Shriver and Mr. Toes, and all of the proponents and

         17  opponents of this bill, that to see so many young

         18  people so committed to an issue, and to come out on

         19  a Thursday night on your own time, to come down to

         20  City Hall, is a really, really wonderful thing, and

         21  I think it gives all of us proponents and opponents

         22  of this bill hope for the future and a real sense of

         23  excitement about the great things that are going on

         24  in this City.

         25                 So, thank you all so much for doing
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          2  that.

          3                 Next we're going to call Joan -- I

          4  apologize if I mispronounce this, Stepanian. I'm

          5  sorry if that's wrong. And then I just want to do a

          6  little bit of a roll call to see who still is here.

          7                 Joseph Weaver? Is Joseph here? Okay,

          8  great. You'll be after this. John Sierup? Okay,

          9  great. You'll be on the panel after this.

         10                 Jessica Heald? Is Jessica still here?

         11  Okay.

         12                 Alicia Genetsky still here? Okay.

         13  Jennifer Jo Smith still here? Janet Patry still

         14  here? Okay, you'll be with the two gentlemen I just

         15  called.

         16                 William Smith? Okay, you'll be the

         17  fourth on the group after this. Thank you.

         18                 Go ahead. The light should be off and

         19  then the mic is on. It's kind of backwards.

         20                 MS. STEPANIAN: Thank you. My name is

         21  Joan Stepanian. I live at 400 East 52nd Street, I'm

         22  here speaking for the smokers against the ban. I

         23  know it's not a popular position with this crowd,

         24  but I just say that, no matter how flat you make a

         25  pancake, it always has two sides. I think there's
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          2  been hysteria about this secondhand smoke. It just

          3  doesn't make common sense. My mother lived with

          4  three smokers her whole live and lived to be 90. I

          5  smoke, I'm 60. My husband smokes, he's 70. Now, if

          6  firsthand smoke isn't killing us, what are the

          7  chances that secondhand smoke would be that

          8  dangerous?

          9                 The old days before this hysteria --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Joan, can you move

         11  the mic a little bit closer? I'm just having a

         12  little trouble hearing you.

         13                 MS. STEPANIAN: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you don't mind.

         15  Thanks.

         16                 MS. STEPANIAN: The hysteria about

         17  secondhand smoke. There used to be people in

         18  restaurants who were smoking at this table or that

         19  table or that table and the air was basically a

         20  little polluted here and there. But now you've

         21  concentrated all the smokers at the bars are in the

         22  smoking section, so naturally it smells bad, and

         23  because we're all stuck there together.

         24                 Doesn't the government allow parts

         25  per billion of mercury in water, or cyanide in
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          2  water, arsenic in water? But it's parts per billion.

          3  So, what you're trying to do here is take all the

          4  arsenic out of the water and give it to one block

          5  and the rest of the water is crystal clear. It

          6  doesn't work that way, common sense. You have

          7  pollutants that are parts per billion in the air.

          8  I'm afraid that all these young people think they're

          9  going to die because they have a few whiffs of a

         10  cigarette smoke, it's just not true. In the forties,

         11  fifties, sixties, seventies, people smoke all the

         12  time, there would be a whole lost generation if that

         13  were true. I think it's hysteria.

         14                 And there was an article in the paper

         15  today from the former, I left my papers on my desk

         16  because I was about to leave, that there were --

         17  it's not calculable, the amount of carcinogens in

         18  the air from the secondhand smoke, it's so tiny you

         19  can't even calculate it, the former head of the

         20  National Cancer Institute.

         21                 So, I think this is another

         22  hysterical -- and then what about my rights as a

         23  taxpaying citizen? Every time you want money you

         24  come to us, you jack up the price of taxes on these

         25  cigarettes and we pay and we pay and we get
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          2  marginalized and marginalized and shoved, pushed to

          3  the bar, pushed near the restaurant, pushed around,

          4  you wouldn't treat any other minority group this

          5  way. None. But you treat smokers like that.

          6                 Now, I'm a law abiding old lady. I

          7  don't want to become a scofflaw and buy cigarettes

          8  out of the City.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: No, Joan, we need

         10  to correct the record. You're not an old lady.

         11                 MS. STEPANIAN: Oh.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I don't want the

         13  record to be inaccurate.

         14                 MS. STEPANIAN: Well, I am an old

         15  lady. But I don't want to become a scofflaw and buy

         16  cigarettes outside the City or a criminal and buy

         17  smuggled cigarettes or some in places where I'm not

         18  allowed. Why not compromise? Why can't there be

         19  taverns that allow smoking, and you put a big S, and

         20  then taverns that don't allow smoking, and you just

         21  had a big zero or something. But I think the Mayor

         22  is trying to turn New York City into Mayberry. This

         23  is New York City. People come here to have fun and

         24  part of that is eating and drinking and smoking. If

         25  you don't want to live in New York City, go live in
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          2  Mayberry, but don't bother us, especially people my

          3  age. You don't expect me to quit smoking at my age?

          4  What do you want to do with me? I'm not allowed to

          5  smoke in the stores, in the offices, in the buses,

          6  in the opera, in the theater, anywhere, so at the

          7  end of the day you go to a restaurant and a bar, you

          8  have a cigarette and a smoke, and now you're not

          9  going to let me do that?

         10                 What about the pent up anxiety that I

         11  have all day from people pushing me around and being

         12  hysterical that they might get a whiff of cigarette

         13  smoke and they might die? It's hysteria, and it's

         14  making me crazy.

         15                 That's the end of my statement.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Joan, if the

         17  papers you mentioned, if you would like to submit

         18  any of them to the record, you could just bring them

         19  up to the Sergeants.

         20                 MS. STEPANIAN: It was in the Post

         21  today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, okay.

         23                 MS. STEPANIAN: An article in the

         24  Post.  Dr. Gio I think his name was. Well, I'll show

         25  you, if you want. I'll give you the article.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You can give it to

          3  Judith, the Counsel to our Committee. Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 MS. STEPANIAN: Thank you for

          6  listening.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If the four folks

          8  that I called before could come on up to the table,

          9  that would be terrific. Thank you.

         10                 Okay, let's see, whoever wants to go

         11  first. Left to right, start in the middle, whatever

         12  you want. Okay.

         13                 MR. WEAVER: This should not be about

         14  money.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just state your

         16  name for the record first.

         17                 MR. WEAVER: My name is Joe Weaver,

         18  and I counsel people about quitting smoking.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 MR. WEAVER: And other things.

         21                 This should not be about money. It

         22  shouldn't also be about what tourist wants, sales

         23  rates, it should be about health. Not only for the

         24  workers but also for the patrons. A sample, a

         25  pregnant woman with her husband who wants to dance
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          2  in a club without endangering their unborn child.

          3  Workers who enjoy bartending, the pay is good,

          4  flexible job, students love it, our young adults,

          5  why tell them to choose another profession? Isn't

          6  this about addiction? Are we going to make laws for

          7  the addicted? Nicotine is an addictive chemical, and

          8  the tobacco companies put extra ingredients, like

          9  ammonia, to keep that addiction.

         10                 Why is it that the tobacco companies

         11  are exempt from adding the 200 chemicals that are

         12  put into tobacco when every other company has to

         13  list those on their products?

         14                 Me, as a consumer, I enjoy going out

         15  after work, going to bars, going to clubs, I am a

         16  health addict, I love health, I love running, I'm a

         17  vegetarian, I cannot stay in a club more than two

         18  hours without having difficulty. All of my friends

         19  who don't smoke cannot stay in a club for one hour,

         20  so therefore, I spend $25 to go into a club, have a

         21  dance and I have to leave because I can't deal with

         22  the smoke.

         23                 Let's also protect the asthmatics.

         24  Secondhand smoke contains chemicals such as carbon

         25  monoxide.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can I just

          3  interrupt you for one second?

          4                 MR. WEAVER: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just wanted to

          6  make an announcement before the folks from Reality

          7  Check leave.

          8                 We just went across to the Mayors

          9  bull pen to see if the Mayor was still here so he

         10  could come out and thank you all for coming. He

         11  left. But his staff said to tell you that at some

         12  point in the future, the Mayor has asked that I tell

         13  you that he's going to invite you all back to City

         14  Hall so you can meet him and he can thank you, and

         15  his Director of City Legislative Affairs is here,

         16  who is going to say hello and thank you to you out

         17  in the Rotunda. So, I wanted to let you know that,

         18  and Mr. Crotty is anxious to thank you himself

         19  before you all leave. So, we'll make sure through

         20  the Coalition they all know where you live to get

         21  the invitations to meet the Mayor. Thank you.

         22                 Sorry about that.

         23                 MR. WEAVER: Let's also think about

         24  the asthmatics who would like to go to a club, a

         25  restaurant, dance, without having to compete with
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          2  carbon monoxide and oxygen.

          3                 Let's also think about enjoying life.

          4  Basically I just want to say that it's my right as

          5  an individual to breathe clean air, and it should be

          6  the right of every individual to breathe clean air.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And we

          8  have a copy of your article, as well. Thank you.

          9                 Go ahead.

         10                 MS. PATRY: Good evening. My name is

         11  Janet Patry, and I'd like to thank the City Council

         12  for allowing me to speak today and share my personal

         13  experience as a waitress and a bartender, both here

         14  in New York and in California.

         15                 I started working as a waitress in

         16  Los Angeles before the smoke-free workplace law was

         17  passed, making all bars and restaurants smoke-free.

         18                 Before the passing of that historic

         19  legislation, I suffered from numerous physical

         20  ailments, including tightness in my chest and

         21  difficulty breathing.

         22                 In general, I was sick more often

         23  with colds, coughs, sore throats, and migraine

         24  headaches. I experienced loss of appetite, I

         25  constantly felt fatigued, and found it difficult to
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          2  maintain cardiovascular fitness. My skin looked

          3  awful, my hair and clothing smelled of smoke, and my

          4  eyes would tear and burn from constant irritation.

          5                 It wasn't until they passed the law

          6  banning smoking in restaurants and bars in

          7  California that I realized the full magnitude of my

          8  health problems and their relation to the smoke.

          9                 Once our establishment went

         10  smoke-free, I felt healthier. I wasn't sick as

         11  often. My skin cleared up and my contact lenses even

         12  lasted longer.

         13                 It easier to work out again and the

         14  headaches went away. I felt as if a weight had been

         15  lifted from my chest.

         16                 Then I moved to New York City and got

         17  a job as a bartender. And once again I faced an

         18  unhealthy work environment.

         19                 I experienced a recurrence of the

         20  same symptoms I had as a waitress in LA, coughing,

         21  the sore throat, the headaches. I've heard people

         22  say that working in a smoking environment is a

         23  choice, and that people that don't like it should

         24  choose to work somewhere else.

         25                 However, finding a new job is never
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          2  as easy as it sounds. Plus many of us work in

          3  restaurants because it is one of the few jobs that

          4  fits our life circumstances.

          5                 I was earning a living like anyone

          6  else, but it was costing me my health.

          7                 It's unconscionable to ask workers to

          8  find other jobs rather than protect them from

          9  secondhand smoke.

         10                 I have since had to leave my job as a

         11  bartender here in New York City. Today I am a human

         12  resource coordinator, and I enjoy a completely

         13  smoke-free office space.

         14                 However, it wasn't until I was

         15  practicing with my soccer league that I realized

         16  that I needed to quit my job as a bartender in order

         17  to regain my health.

         18                 One night my coach pulled me aside

         19  after seeing me struggling to keep up with the team.

         20  He asked me if I was a smoker, and I replied, "No,

         21  I'm a bartender." It occurred to me that being a

         22  bartender or a waitress in an establishment that

         23  permits smoking, was synonymous with being a smoker

         24  myself.

         25                 I had all the signs and symptoms of a
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          2  smoker, and yet I wasn't one.

          3                 I wondered, you have to make a

          4  certain amount of money or have the luxury of an

          5  office to avoid secondhand smoke.

          6                 I'm hoping that your answer, members

          7  of this Council, is no. I am here today to ask that

          8  you consider the health and well-being of all people

          9  who work in New York City by making all workplaces

         10  smoke-free.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         13                 MR. SIERUP: Good evening. My name is

         14  John Sierup. I'm chair of the Clean Indoor Air

         15  Committee for the New York City group of Sierra

         16  Club.

         17                 Sierra Club policy has for a long

         18  time called for the elimination of smoking in indoor

         19  public places and workplaces, and the Sierra Club

         20  has specifically endorsed Intro. 265 -- 56. Council

         21  Member, thank you very much for sponsoring 256, and

         22  thank you for supporting it.

         23                 I would like to offer the perspective

         24  of a voice teacher in Manhattan, a perspective a

         25  little different than any we've had earlier today.
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          2                 I'd like to read a statement by Jay

          3  Kerr, who teaches voice in Manhattan, has a studio

          4  at 8 57th Avenue.

          5                 Mr. Kerr writes:

          6                 "I make my living teaching vocal

          7  technique and performance in New York City, which is

          8  not only the acknowledged center of American arts,

          9  but also the city where our most promising young

         10  artists come to learn the craft of their art.

         11                 In order to have for studies and

         12  auditions, and in order to make money they need to

         13  support these efforts, most of my younger clientele,

         14  the 20 to 40 year olds, hold jobs in bars and

         15  lounges so that they can work at night and pursue

         16  their dreams during the day.

         17                 I will not schedule a voice lesson

         18  with a student for any time during the day after he

         19  or she has worked an evening at a bar. Some of the

         20  effects of breathing other people's smoke are

         21  immediately obvious. The day after working at a bar,

         22  a student has an irritated throat, mild congestion.

         23  Manifested in that sexy gravely sound that means the

         24  vocal cords have been abused. Like any injury, this

         25  one needs recovery. Were I to conduct a normal
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          2  lesson on a day following bar work, I would be

          3  participating in the abuse of the vocal instrument

          4  and possibly causing it further harm.

          5                 These are bright, attractive kids

          6  that come to New York to be performers. It is that

          7  same bright attractiveness that makes them readily

          8  employable in the food and beverage service

          9  industry.

         10                 Ironically, smoke-filled workplace

         11  conditions jeopardize the very voices that these

         12  kids depend on for their acting and singing careers.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         15                 MR. SMITH: My name is William Smith,

         16  and I'd like to begin by thanking the Council for

         17  giving me the opportunity to express my ongoing

         18  frustration with secondhand smoke in my workplace. I

         19  currently work at One Liberty Plaza right down the

         20  road here on the 47th floor.

         21                 The floor was built out to

         22  accommodate several small companies, as well as one

         23  large company. My office happens to be situated

         24  directly adjacent to the smoking lounge/conference

         25  room, of the company next door.
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          2                 Because of the floor's design and the

          3  shared ventilation system, secondhand smoke from the

          4  other company fills my workplace on a regular basis.

          5                 Personally my job involves heavy

          6  phone usage, and smoke irritates my throat and makes

          7  it difficult to speak. I've complained to the

          8  building management several times. However, I was

          9  informed that a loophole in the New York City Health

         10  Code makes it perfectly legal for people to smoke

         11  inside an office building, even if it affects other

         12  people. There are times when I enter my office and

         13  have to leave the door open to let the smoke from

         14  the other company dissipate before I can enter.

         15                 My work has become difficult, if not

         16  impossible, under these conditions. I refuse to be

         17  subjected to breathing a substance that we all know

         18  causes cancer. Why should I or anyone be made to

         19  change workplaces simply because someone else can

         20  legally contend the air I am forced to breathe? I've

         21  read the paper. Secondhand smoke is a health hazard

         22  which can increase my risk of developing serious

         23  respiratory illness or God forbid, cancer. I

         24  understand that you, members of the City Council,

         25  have authority to change all of this. I ask on
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          2  behalf of all workers, through no fault of their own

          3  are forced into this potentially dangerous

          4  situation. Please protect us by making all places of

          5  work in New York City smoke-free.

          6                 I will just add quickly, I realized

          7  today, I work in a small office, at my home office,

          8  the head of my marketing department who is actually

          9  my boss is a heavy smoker, and I never realized

         10  until recently that when I go to the home office, I

         11  can smell his office as soon as I come off the

         12  elevator. I'm not in the position to make a problem

         13  about that, or I could probably kiss my job

         14  good-bye. And I'm sure I'm not alone in that there

         15  are many people who are probably afraid to speak out

         16  against their employers in trying to create a

         17  healthy work environment for them. So, I again ask

         18  you for your help in trying making it healthy for

         19  all of us.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Thank

         22  all of you. Thank you.

         23                 Is Beatrice DuPont still here? Okay,

         24  why don't you come on up.

         25                 Alan Chow still here? Okay. Josephine
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          2  Chung still here? Okay, come on up, Josephine.

          3  Kathryn Dupuis still here? All right, come on up.

          4  Richard Stowe? Okay. Is Vera Zlatarski? Okay, why

          5  don't you come on up, too. That's the last slip that

          6  I have, so if there's someone else that is here that

          7  wants to testify either in support of opposition,

          8  you should see the Sergeant.

          9                 Just before the last group of folks

         10  testifies, I want to just make a couple of thank

         11  yous. I want to thank the staff to the Health

         12  Committee, who did a ton of work pulling today's

         13  hearing together today. Deb Roth, Chris Winward,

         14  Judith MacFarlane. I want to thank my staff who

         15  worked on the hearing, Lucy Mayo and Peter Rider.

         16  The staff from the Department of Health and Mental

         17  Hygiene, Christina Chang and Fran Paris. I also want

         18  to thank the Sergeants-At-Arms, who are here now,

         19  and the ones who were here before who I think did a

         20  great job keeping -- and thank Crosswalks for

         21  staying -- but particularly the Sergeants-At-Arms

         22  who did a great job of dealing with a very crowded

         23  chamber with strong feelings, and I think helped us

         24  move everything along. So, with that said, if you

         25  could move your pocketbook, we'll sit the last
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          2  person there, and great.

          3                 And whoever wants to go first. It

          4  doesn't matter.

          5                 Is the light off? You need the light

          6  to be off.

          7                 MS. CHUNG: Madam Chair Quinn,

          8  honorable members of the Health Committee, I am

          9  Josephine Chung, and in the past 15 years I have

         10  been very active in the community and I've served on

         11  a volunteer basis in an organization of Chinese

         12  Americans, which have 49 chapters and 37 college

         13  affiliates across the nation, and it's very alarming

         14  and disturbing to our community that according to

         15  the Legacy Foundation Survey the smoking rate for

         16  12th grader students are the highest amount of all

         17  minority groups, they have a whopping 34 percent.

         18  So, it's a real alarm for us to have that

         19  information.

         20                 And I also in the past have served,

         21  in the Association of Legal Administrators and law

         22  firms, and where I was running a law firm at 52nd

         23  floor, 1 World Trade Center, I enforced the Clean

         24  Indoor Act, and other lawyers and staff had to

         25  comply because this is to protect everybody from
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          2  secondhand smoke, and they had to comply because it

          3  was the law, and, unfortunately, under the current

          4  law, the workers in restaurants under 35 seats and

          5  bars and other places, they're not protected. They

          6  have to breathe the unhealthy secondhand smoke, and

          7  they also have to suffer the deadly facts of

          8  secondhand smoke to earn a living or they won't have

          9  a job. And some bartenders and waiters told me that

         10  they dare not testify because they are afraid of

         11  retribution and retaliation, or get fired from the

         12  job. And even if patrons, you know, are smoking,

         13  they cannot stop them because any complaints from

         14  the patrons will likely result in termination of

         15  employment.

         16                 A good friend of mine works in a news

         17  agency, a foreign news agency and have eight workers

         18  in an open air office, and everybody is a chain

         19  smoker, and she's the only person who does not

         20  smoke, and secondhand smoke really affect her work

         21  performance, make her sick, and she has negotiated

         22  with the workers but they will not listen to her

         23  until she threatened to call the Health Department

         24  and then they complied with the law. Because it is

         25  the law, nobody should be above the law in the
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          2  United States.

          3                 And honorable members of City

          4  Council, we urge you all to pass this smoke-free

          5  workplace act, Intro. 256, to protect the right of

          6  all the workers in New York City to breathe clean

          7  air. And please sponsor and vote in favor of this

          8  bill. Please be on record that you are in favor of

          9  equal protection and equal treatment of all the

         10  workers in New York City, and you care deeply about

         11  the public health of all New Yorkers because

         12  secondhand smoke is a health hazard, it's an

         13  occupational health hazard. And workers, low-income

         14  workers, like waiters who make three, four-hundred

         15  dollars, should not be subject to this occupational

         16  hazard, and I thank you very much for the

         17  opportunity to testify tonight.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 If the light is off, the mic is on.

         20  And try to have only one on at a time.

         21                 MS. ZLATARSKI: My name is Vera

         22  Zlatarski. I'm a lawyer at a downtown law firm

         23  actually in One Liberty Plaza. I live in Yorkville.

         24  I go out way too much. I work very hard and even if

         25  I'm leaving the office at 10:00, actually, I ran
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          2  over here, I have to come back to the office, but

          3  even if I'm leaving on the late side, inevitably I

          4  like to go out very much. I probably spend more

          5  money in restaurants and bars than anybody I know.

          6  And, unfortunately, over the last two years I've

          7  developed an allergy to smoke. And, for example,

          8  this Tuesday night I went to a restaurant, where I

          9  originally thought it was just a restaurant, but I

         10  then realized that it was a bar right next to it,

         11  and more and more people in the night came in, a lot

         12  of people were smoking. Yesterday and today I was

         13  out of breath, I had pressure in my chest, I had a

         14  sore throat, I was coughing. I went to the gym, I

         15  had a hard time doing the kind of things I'd

         16  normally be able to do. And I'm not the only one

         17  with this experience.

         18                 The owner of the Raven Bar earlier

         19  tonight said that people who like to drink, like to

         20  smoke. I love to drink, I love to eat, I love to go

         21  out. All of my friends always ask me, you know, I

         22  want to go to this type of bar, where should I go

         23  take my friends out? They always look to me to

         24  recommend, but I really hope that you do pass this

         25  legislation in order to help people like me. This is
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          2  the first issue that has important to me personally

          3  to make me come into City Hall. I'll be honest, I've

          4  never been very active in the community or in any

          5  issue, because no issue until today has been so

          6  personally relevant to me.

          7                 A friend of mine said that if this

          8  legislation is passed, the Mayor and the members of

          9  the City Council that support it, will have his vote

         10  in perpetuity, and that very much goes to me as

         11  well.

         12                 Final note, it's interesting, as I

         13  work in One Liberty Plaza, as did the gentleman who

         14  spoke earlier, and I actually moved offices a couple

         15  of months ago because I was noticing there was smoke

         16  coming through the vents. A funny little note, I'm

         17  glad I came tonight just to learn that.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 MS. DuPUIS: Good evening. My name is

         21  Catherine DuPuis. I live and work here in New York.

         22  I've never been a cigarette smoker, but I grew up

         23  surrounded by them.

         24                 My father and three of my

         25  grandparents smoked excessively. Those same three
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          2  grandparents are dead from cigarette smoke-related

          3  illnesses.

          4                 They smoked around me, outside of the

          5  house, inside of the house, in the car. And they

          6  smoked around me each time I'd ride home from the

          7  doctor's office, because, you see, as a child I was

          8  diagnosed year after year with chronic respiratory

          9  illnesses, including bronchitis and pneumonia.

         10                 Back in those days, nobody knew how

         11  high the risks were when exposed to secondhand

         12  smoke. Today we know exactly how dangerous this

         13  exposure is, and I'm here to ask you to do something

         14  about it by protecting me and all other workers in

         15  New York City by passing Intro. 256.

         16                 Today I suffer not only from the same

         17  respiratory ailments, but I now also have asthma.

         18  Nearly every time I go to work, my asthma is further

         19  aggravated. I'm a jazz singer and a recording

         20  artist. A career I trained long and hard for. I'm a

         21  graduate of Indiana University School of Music and I

         22  hold an MFA in acting from Penn State. I've been

         23  working in the entertainment industry since 1977, in

         24  New York City, the City I love, since 1985.

         25                 You see, I came here with a dream.
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          2  I've been working as an actress, a musician and a

          3  singer. Unfortunately, to do my work as a performing

          4  artist, I'm constantly thrust into environments that

          5  exacerbate my respiratory condition.

          6                 As a jazz singer I'm in smoky

          7  environments, causing me great pulmonary distress,

          8  physical discomfort, and an inability to take in

          9  enough air to breathe, much less sing, which is what

         10  I've actually been hired to do.

         11                 The bottom line: My health is

         12  compromised every time I go to work at my chosen

         13  profession.

         14                 You know it's not easy to get a job

         15  as a performer in this wonderful City. The best of

         16  the best come from all over the world. They come

         17  here to share their talents and compete for work in

         18  clubs and restaurants.

         19                 If I could pick and choose where I'd

         20  perform, believe me, I wouldn't work in venues that

         21  allow smoking. But that's not my option. There are

         22  very few venues that are smoke-free here in this

         23  City, and I've been fortunate enough to play out a

         24  lot here. Big clubs, small clubs, good restaurants,

         25  I'll be playing in two weeks at Jilly's.
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          2                 I desire to continue my life work as

          3  a musician and entertainer in the clubs and

          4  restaurants of this City, where jazz is famous and

          5  where the famous play jazz. Please take a moment to

          6  walk in my shoes.

          7                 If every day you woke up and came to

          8  City Hall to pursue your chosen profession, knowing

          9  full well that doing your work there on these

         10  premises, even at this hearing, for example, was

         11  jeopardizing your health, significantly shortening

         12  your life, would you seek reelection? And nobody

         13  should be forced to choose between their profession

         14  and their health. Please make all workplaces

         15  smoke-free. It's the responsible thing to do.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         18                 MS. DuPONT: Hello. My name is

         19  Beatrice DuPont. I'm a non-smoker. I went to work in

         20  a law firm for two years, and as a result of

         21  inhaling secondhand smoke that was permitted by some

         22  attorneys, I developed several respiratory diseases

         23  since December 2000. They are Multiple Chemical

         24  Sensitivity, MCS; chronic bronchitis; and asthma. I

         25  am now disabled and I am unable to work because the
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          2  firm violated New York City's Smoke-Free Air Act of

          3  1995.

          4                 I have become hypersensitive to

          5  noxious fumes, which include secondhand smoke,

          6  pollution from buses, cars and trucks, chemical

          7  sprays, fumes from cleansers and disinfectants

          8  containing chemicals like ammonia or bleach, the

          9  outgasing of new carpeting, construction dust and

         10  dust.

         11                 When I am exposed to any of these

         12  things, the effects are chest pain, coughing,

         13  choking, increased blood pressure, phlegm production

         14  in my chest, mucous in my head and nasal passages.

         15  Sneezing, headache, fatigue, labored breathing,

         16  itchy eyes, dizziness, drowsiness, mental confusion,

         17  autoimmune problems, longer sleeping hours, abnormal

         18  sleeping patterns, grogginess, left arm swelling,

         19  left and right arms tingling, joint pains and hot

         20  flashes. Damn those hot flashes. Stress, depression

         21  and irritability.

         22                 I had abnormal EKGs because my heart

         23  had to work harder to process my blood. My left

         24  atrium became enlarged. I had painful heart

         25  palpitations and simultaneously, back pain hard
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          2  enough for me to think I was going to have a heart

          3  attack.

          4                 I have severe stomach pains when I

          5  inhale fumes from cleansers and disinfectants

          6  containing ammonia or bleach. I cannot get on

          7  recently-cleaned elevators. I clean my apartment

          8  with dish washing liquid or shampoo.

          9                 I have eye sensitivity to very bright

         10  lights in a well-air conditioned room, accompanied

         11  by light-headedness, dizziness and feeling faint.

         12                 I have to wear several blue surgical

         13  masks, and I am filled with paranoia when I am

         14  outdoors.

         15                 I carry a thick washcloth to cover my

         16  mouth when I am near vehicles' exhaust fumes and

         17  heavy traffic, when an oil truck or school bus is

         18  spouting thick black smoke, when I walk near or

         19  behind someone smoking in the street or on the

         20  subway.  Sometimes I cross the street if I notice

         21  too many people smoking in my path. I hold my breath

         22  for as long as I can as I pass them.

         23                 While wearing a mask during the

         24  summer, it feels like I'm wearing an oven on my

         25  face. I have a burning sensation in my nasal
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          2  passages if I inhaled exhaust fumes while standing

          3  near a vehicle.  I walk down side streets when I

          4  can't avoid the more heavily-traveled streets.

          5                 I am always arguing and yelling at

          6  people who smoke on the enclosed escalator leading

          7  up to the elevated subway platform, who smoke in the

          8  subways near the token booth, who actually smoke on

          9  the platforms or who smoke in subway tunnels.

         10                 My heart goes crazy after I inhale

         11  the fumes.

         12                 While riding the subway or a bus or

         13  even in a hospital I have had to put my mask on if

         14  I'm near someone who has recently smoked, or move

         15  away from them. The odor is revolting.

         16                 My immune system has been

         17  compromised.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could just

         19  sum up? Thanks.

         20                 MS. DuPONT: My life has been changed

         21  irrevocably this is a permanent condition. And I ask

         22  you to pass this law so that no one else can get

         23  something like this, or even lung cancer or breast

         24  cancer. This is very important to me and all the

         25  population of New York City.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          4                 MR. STOWE: My name is Richard Stowe.

          5  I'm a resident of San Juan, Capistrano California. I

          6  have come here today to New York City, in the great

          7  State of New York to speak about the benefits I have

          8  had since the passage of legislation in California,

          9  banning cigarette smoke in restaurants and bars.

         10                 I want to thank you, Councilman

         11  Quinn, Mayor Bloomberg, and other Council members

         12  for introducing Legislation 256, and I hope you will

         13  successfully shepard this bill to a successful

         14  passage.

         15                 In the mid-1940s my mom arrived by

         16  boat in New York City from Cairo, Egypt. Here she

         17  was introduced to and took up cigarette smoking. And

         18  she smoked until 1974. She continued to social with

         19  fellow smokers until she passed away from lung

         20  cancer in 1988.

         21                 There are benefits to this

         22  legislation to smokers. A smoke-free environment

         23  will allow bar employees, restaurant employees an

         24  environment whether they smoke or not, free of the

         25  smell and the damage to hair, skin and clothes that
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          2  a smoky bar environment incurs.

          3                 I have a number of competitive

          4  bicyclist friends who worked in bars, and I believe

          5  that, in bars and restaurants, and that their

          6  competitiveness was deleteriously affected by

          7  smoking.

          8                 I would like to invest in New York

          9  City's future, I would like to have an equitable

         10  opportunity to pursue future employment in bars and

         11  restaurants in New York City. I would like to have

         12  an equitable opportunity to socialize and enjoy the

         13  amenities of bars, nightclubs and even

         14  establishments.

         15                 I pledge I will invest in support in

         16  this fair City, if this legislation is passed.

         17                 I believe visitors will flock to New

         18  York City after the passage of this bill. They

         19  certainly have to California. I believe legislation,

         20  which is similar to the legislation passed in the

         21  State of California will benefit not only the health

         22  and quality of life in this world reknown city, but

         23  also the economy, the reputation, the cache, of this

         24  world reveered, world class city.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We're going to

          3  have one more witness actually, Susan O'Brien, from

          4  NYCOSH.

          5                 Thank you all very much.

          6                 MS. O'BRIEN: Good evening,

          7  Councilwoman Quinn. Thank you for staying so late.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

          9                 MS. O'BRIEN: How's your neck?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: It's all better I

         11  think. Thanks.

         12                 MS. O'BRIEN: I'm sorry, I didn't

         13  realize I only had three minutes and I'm going to

         14  hurry up.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         16                 MS. O'BRIEN: My name is Susan

         17  O'Brien, I'm from the New York Committee for

         18  Occupational Safety and Health or NYCOSH. I'll skip

         19  who we are because I believe you know.

         20                 We support Intro. 256, we believe

         21  secondhand smoke has serious adverse health

         22  implications. The EPA, as you probably know, has

         23  estimated in 1998 that workplace exposure to

         24  secondhand smoke will result in 700 cases of lung

         25  cancer and as many as 13,000 deaths from heart
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          2  disease per year among non-smokers.

          3                 Another study found that workers who

          4  work around secondhand smoke increase their

          5  likelihood of developing lung cancer by 34 percent.

          6                 We know that this legislation is

          7  aimed at workers who are most at risk from exposure,

          8  bar tenders --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Hang on one

         10  second, Susan.

         11                 I'm sorry, will you just take

         12  conversations outside so that the final witness can

         13  have quiet while she's testifying, please?

         14                 Thanks.

         15                 MS. O'BRIEN: So, the legislation is

         16  really aimed at those workers, and we are a worker

         17  safety organization. And those workers who are most

         18  at risk from exposure, bartenders, workers and

         19  casinos and restaurants. According to studies

         20  reported by the American Journal of the Medical

         21  Association, levels of secondhand smoke are up to

         22  two times higher in restaurants, and up to six times

         23  higher in bars than in any office workplace.

         24                 The same researchers concluded that

         25  there could be up to a 50 percent increase in lung
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          2  cancer risk among food service workers, in part

          3  attributable to tobacco smoke.

          4                 These workers do not have a choice

          5  about whether or not to work in a non-smoking

          6  environment. They should not have to be put in a

          7  position to make a choice between their job, their

          8  livelihood, or their health.

          9                 A causal relationship has definitely

         10  been established between secondhand smoke and lung

         11  cancer.

         12                 The EPA has classified secondhand

         13  smoke as a group A carcinogen, and that's a

         14  designation applied to over 15 other pollutants,

         15  including asbestos, arsenic and benzene.

         16                 Carcinogens have no known safe level.

         17  In addition to lung cancer, secondhand smoke causes

         18  a wide range of other health affects, which I'm sure

         19  you have heard all day today.

         20                 It contains 4,700 identified

         21  substances, including poisons and irritants like

         22  carbon monoxide, formaldehyde and hydrogen cyanide.

         23  You know, lovely chemicals.

         24                 Smoke in the workplace causes

         25  noticeable discomfort.  Nearly two-thirds of
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          2  non-smoking employees have reported some degree of

          3  discomfort resulting from exposure to secondhand

          4  smoke. Eighty-eight percent of non-smokers have

          5  significant levels of nicotine residue in their

          6  blood. This prevalence and exposure undercuts any

          7  argument that those who claim that smoking is an

          8  issue of choice. For people who work in bars and

          9  casinos and restaurants, this is not a choice.

         10                 Despite objection to the tobacco

         11  industry, surveys have shown vast public supports

         12  for legislative initiatives such as this: Nearly six

         13  out of ten voters supported the elimination of

         14  smoking in all offices, restaurants and bars, and a

         15  survey in March of 2002. Despite the potentially

         16  divisive nature of this issue, union leaders have

         17  displayed support for measures protecting workers

         18  from secondhand smoke with 48 percent of union

         19  leaders surveyed either in support of a restriction

         20  or a ban and only eight percent opposed to both a

         21  ban and a restriction. And that is even though most

         22  blue collar workers who are unionized are seven

         23  times more likely to smoke than white collar

         24  workers.

         25                 Finally, financially speaking,
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          2  smoking results in lost productivity, increased

          3  health care costs to employers, as well as higher

          4  taxes to the general public.

          5                 New York Worker's Compensation Law

          6  denies workers who are sick from secondhand smoke

          7  access to wage replacement and medical benefits, so

          8  left with nowhere to turn, these workers end up on

          9  medical insurance, disability, unemployment benefits

         10  or welfare.

         11                 New Yorkers spent more than $6.3

         12  billion in 1998 on medical care, so this is coming

         13  out of the tax revenues, rather than the employers'

         14  revenues.

         15                 Anyway, so I'm done. Let's see, can I

         16  say one last comment?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         18                 MS. O'BRIEN: Okay. Medical bills for

         19  treating tobacco-related illnesses are often footed

         20  by contractually negotiated medical plans, treating

         21  smokers and non-smokers affected by secondhand smoke

         22  consumes an estimated ten percent of union health

         23  care plans. So, it is really in the interest of

         24  unions, many of whom, 200 of which in this City are

         25  members of our organizations to support a total ban
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          2  on smoking.

          3                 Thank you for your time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          5                 And thank you all, and today's

          6  hearing is adjourned.

          7                 (The following written testimony was

          8  read into the record.)

          9

         10

         11  Written Testimony Of:

         12  Michael Seserman

         13  New York State Director of Tobacco

         14  And Program Services

         15  American Cancer Society

         16

         17                 My name is Michael Seserman. I am the

         18  New York State Director of Tobacco and Program

         19  Services for the American Cancer Society.

         20                 ACS is the Nation's leading voluntary

         21  health organization dedicated to reducing the burden

         22  of cancer.

         23                 I am here today to speak in strong

         24  support of Intro. 256 and worksites free of

         25  cancer-causing tobacco smoke.
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          2                 Approximately one-third of all cancer

          3  is attributed to tobacco and these cancer cases are

          4  completely preventable (Cancer Prevention and Early

          5  Detection: Facts and Figures, 2001.)

          6                 Consequently, reducing the effects of

          7  tobacco is a major priority for ACS. Secondhand

          8  tobacco smoke is a Group A carcinogen, which is a

          9  designation given to chemicals which have been

         10  proven to cause cancer in humans.

         11                 The US Environmental Protection

         12  Agency has classified only 15 other pollutants as

         13  Group A carcinogens, including asbestos, arsenic,

         14  and benzene. There is no safe exposure level to

         15  these toxins.

         16                 Numerous studies have examined the

         17  associations between secondhand smoke exposure and

         18  acute (short-term) and chronic (long-term) health

         19  effects.

         20                 The studies confirmed that exposure

         21  to secondhand smoke has a variety of acute effects

         22  on the human body such as coughing, chest

         23  discomfort, and reduced lung function. Not only is

         24  secondhand smoke harmful in the short-term, it can

         25  also be fatal under conditions of long-term
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          2  exposure. It is estimated that every year 3,000

          3  non-smokers die of lung cancer (EPA, 1992). That

          4  translates to approximately 85 preventable lung

          5  cancer deaths among non-smokers occurring each year

          6  in NYC. Secondhand smoke is also causally linked to

          7  nasal sinus cancers.

          8                 Nearly nine out of ten non-smoking

          9  Americans are exposed to environmental tobacco smoke

         10  as measured by the levels of cotinine in their blood

         11  (CDC, 1996). Serum cotinine levels can be used to

         12  estimate a person's nicotine exposure within the

         13  last two to three days. Non-smokers who are exposed

         14  to secondhand smoke absorb nicotine and other

         15  compounds just as smokers do. The more a person is

         16  exposed to secondhand smoke, the higher the risk of

         17  illness.

         18                 Non-smokers employed in workplaces

         19  that allow smoking are eight times more likely to be

         20  exposed to secondhand smoke than those employed in

         21  smoke-free worksites (Borland, 1992). This suggests

         22  that most non-smokers are exposed at work rather

         23  than in the home and that is supported by other

         24  studies, as well. (Emmons, 1992).

         25                 Why should this legislation be
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          2  enacted?

          3                 1. Protect workers.

          4                 Restaurant and bar workers are at

          5  serious risk of tobacco-related disease as a result

          6  of intensive and long-term exposure to secondhand

          7  smoke. Studies have shown a 50 percent increase in

          8  lung cancer risk among food service workers that is

          9  attributable to tobacco smoke (Siegel, 1993).

         10                 As a population, these low-income

         11  workers tend to be less educated and often have

         12  limited career choices.

         13                 People should not have to breathe

         14  carcinogens and put their health at risk to earn a

         15  living. Government has a responsibility to protect

         16  workers from occupational hazards.

         17                 Current law does not allow benzene or

         18  asbestos exposure on the job. Why is there an

         19  exception for tobacco smoke given what we now know

         20  about its effects? Most workers are not even aware

         21  of the dangers posed by secondhand smoke and they

         22  are certainly not informed of the risk.

         23                 2. Promote quitting among adults and

         24  youth.

         25                 Smoking kills approximately 13,000
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          2  adults in New York City each year costing the City

          3  an estimated $650 million in Medicaid expenditures

          4  each year. There is strong evidence that restricting

          5  smoking in the workplace reduces tobacco

          6  consumption, increases quit attempts, and increases

          7  quit rates (Moskowitz, 2000). Smoke-free workers

          8  also save employers money due to reduced absenteeism

          9  and increased productivity. In fact, CDC estimates

         10  that employers safe about $1,000 per newly quit

         11  employee per year.

         12                 3. Reduce youth smoking and future

         13  addiction, disability, and death.

         14                 Restricting tobacco us in public

         15  places sends a powerful message to youth and parents

         16  about not smoking around other people.

         17                 In fact, teenage smokers are more

         18  likely to quit when they are concerned about hurting

         19  others from secondhand smoke more than concern for

         20  their own health (Jamieson, 2000).

         21                 Fewer smokers as a result of smoking

         22  bans means fewer peer and adult role models to

         23  encourage youth initiation of tobacco use.

         24                 In addition, a recent study by

         25  Chaloupka found that communities with strong laws
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          2  restricting smoking have significantly lower rates

          3  of youth smoking.

          4                 Laws like this help normalize tobacco

          5  use among youth and counter the more than $6 billion

          6  in tobacco advertising and promotion spent each year

          7  by the tobacco industry. That is why the tobacco

          8  industry and its front groups are so opposed to

          9  them. Smoke-free policies work.

         10                 4. Reduce tobacco industry

         11  manipulation and deception.

         12                 The health rationale is clear.

         13  However, the tobacco industry continues to use its

         14  vast financial resources to manipulate the political

         15  process and public opinion. The industry pays

         16  lobbyists and front groups to oppose these laws

         17  because they are concerned about having fewer

         18  addicted smokers (e.g., life, paying customers) and

         19  lower profits. The following statement from the

         20  industry's own documents support this fact: "Smoking

         21  bans are the biggest challenge we have ever faced.

         22  Quit rates go from five percent to 21 percent when

         23  smokers work in non-smoking environments."

         24                 Already, they must replace about 2

         25  million smokers a year, about 25 percent of whom
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          2  have died from the addiction.

          3                 Moreover, industry documents show how

          4  they have tried to discredit scientific research

          5  here and abroad. That same approach is still being

          6  used in spite of substantial scientific evidence

          7  that secondhand smoke causes cancer and heart

          8  disease and that smoking bans do not reduce

          9  restaurant or bar profits.

         10                 The American Cancer Society

         11  respectfully asks that you support this bill and

         12  show that the influence of industry money does not

         13  win out over the health of New Yorkers.

         14

         15

         16  Written Testimony Of:

         17  Jim Lesczynski

         18  Manhattan Libertarian Party

         19  212-559-2123

         20                 My name is Jim Lesczynski, and I'm a

         21  former City Council candidate and activist with the

         22  Manhattan Libertarian Party.

         23                 Some of you may remember us from the

         24  Great Cigarette Giveaway we sponsored here earlier

         25  this year, in which the Libertarian Party handed out
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          2  free packs of cigarettes outside City Hall in

          3  protest of Mayor Bloomberg's obscenely punitive tax

          4  hike on smokers.

          5                 Here we are again a few months later,

          6  and our Mayor is once again attacking the rights of

          7  New Yorkers.

          8                 However, I am not here today to

          9  defend smokers, although they are by and large good

         10  citizens who have never hurt anyone, except possibly

         11  themselves. I am here today to defend property

         12  owners and the importance of property rights in a

         13  just and free civilization.

         14                 One of the traits that separates a

         15  free society from a socialist state or a feudal

         16  system is the right to own private property. If that

         17  right is to have any meaning at all, then property

         18  owners must have the right to decide what behavior

         19  is or is not allowed on that property. If

         20  government, rather than the rightful owner, makes

         21  those decisions, then private property ownership is

         22  a sham in New York City.

         23                 When people enter a bar, restaurant,

         24  office, nightclub, or even one of the private clubs

         25  where smoking would be prohibited under this
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          2  proposal, each person does so under his or her free

          3  will.

          4                 That goes for employees and customers

          5  alike. If you don't want to work in a smoking

          6  environment, don't take a job where your employer

          7  allows smoking. It's as simple as that.

          8                 To say that this bill is intended to

          9  protect the bartenders is absurd. Most bartenders

         10  I've ever met all smoke! Nobody is putting a gun to

         11  anyone's head and forcing them into a smoky bar. The

         12  only guns are those belonging to the government,

         13  which would use brute force and the threat of

         14  violence to enforce a prohibition on consensual

         15  behavior.

         16                 As I understand it, Mayor Bloomberg

         17  owns quite a bit of property himself. He has every

         18  right to set whatever smoking policy he likes in his

         19  own homes and businesses, but he must not take that

         20  right away from other property owners.

         21                 The Mayor's Office does not come with

         22  the deed to every building in the City. This

         23  proposal reeks like a cheap cigar. It reeks with

         24  contempt for the rights of the people. I urge you to

         25  vote against it. Thank you.
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          2

          3

          4  Written Testimony Of:

          5  Joseph Conley

          6  Chairman

          7  Delores M. Rizzotto

          8  District Manager

          9  Community Board No. 2

         10

         11  October 7, 2002

         12

         13  Gary Altman, Legislative Counsel

         14  The Council of the City of New York

         15  Office of the Speaker

         16  City Hall

         17  New York, New York 10007

         18

         19  RE: INTRO No. 256 - in relation to the prohibition

         20  of smoking in public places and places of

         21  employment.

         22

         23                 Dear Mr. Altman:

         24                 Thank you for providing Community

         25  Board 2 with a copy of Intro. No. 256 and the
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          2  opportunity to comment.

          3                 This matter was reviewed by CB 2's

          4  City Services and Public Safety Committee at their

          5  October 2nd meeting, and after careful review, it

          6  was voted by the committee to present the

          7  committee's recommendation to the full board at our

          8  regular monthly meeting on October 3rd.

          9                 Community Board 2's membership, after

         10  hearing the recommendation of the committee,

         11  concluded that Intro. No. 256 will force patrons of

         12  restaurants, clubs and other drinking

         13  establishments, who smoke, out onto city sidewalks

         14  thus creating a public nuisance. Therefore, this

         15  legislation will contribute to negative quality of

         16  life issues by increasing noise levels, littering

         17  and loitering throughout our communities in the late

         18  evening and early morning hours.

         19                 At the October 3, 2002 meeting of the

         20  full board, a motion was made, and seconded, to

         21  oppose Intro. No. 256 In Relation to the Prohibition

         22  of Smoking in Public Place and Places of Employment.

         23                 The motion passed with 29 in Favor, 9

         24  Opposed, and 1 Abstention.

         25                 Sincerely yours, Joseph Conley,
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          2  Chairman

          3

          4  JC:dr

          5  Intro. 256.28

          6

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Meagen Reeve

         10                 I had been sensitive to cigarette

         11  smoke since childhood, but it was until I went to

         12  college that I realized it was more than just

         13  dislike of the smell -- it was an allergy. I would

         14  find myself in smoky bars and restaurants with

         15  headaches, severe congestion, and burning, red eyes.

         16  I always knew when a place had a really good

         17  ventilation system because I could stay longer

         18  without feeling sick.

         19                 After graduation I took a job as a

         20  waitress in a restaurant to save up some money, and

         21  enjoyed nearly everything about working there. The

         22  one problem was that during every shift each staff

         23  was assigned to serve a different section of the

         24  restaurant, and I found myself having to serve in

         25  the smoking section several times a week.
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          2                 I tried not to complain, but at one

          3  point I let my boss know I was allergic to smoke and

          4  that spending a whole shift in the smoking section

          5  triggered allergic reactions. She just gave me an

          6  off-handed comment about how everyone had to take

          7  his or her turn working in that section.

          8                 I dealt with it for the rest of my

          9  time working there - about six months - and would

         10  sometimes just hold my breath when standing over a

         11  smoker taking his order.

         12                 My sensitivity to smoke continues

         13  today. I enjoy frequenting bars and restaurants in

         14  the City, but find myself enjoying them less and

         15  less because of people smoking around me. At the

         16  workplace, people have to go outside to take a smoke

         17  break, but when I'm in a bar I have to go outside to

         18  take a "smoke-free break." Often times I just leave

         19  because the exposure to smoke has made me feel so

         20  sick.

         21                 I know that smoking is an addiction,

         22  and a hard one to break at that.

         23                 But it is a choice. Going to

         24  restaurants and bars is also a choice - my choice -

         25  and is one that I've made to avoid the alternative
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          2  of being cut off from friends and family because

          3  there's so few smoke-free places to enjoy a drink

          4  and a meal.

          5                 But why should I have to pay with my

          6  health every time I want to visit a bar or

          7  restaurant? Shouldn't I be able to enjoy a shared

          8  public space without feeling sick? Why should

          9  non-smokers be subjected to inhaling the

         10  cancer-causing, allergy-inducing agents of someone

         11  else's addiction?

         12                 I implore the New York City Council

         13  to do the right thing and ban smoking in all places

         14  of work to help better protect the health, lives,

         15  and lungs of both the patrons and workers of New

         16  York City's bars and restaurants.

         17                 Meagen Reeve

         18                 462 3rd Street, Apt No. 1R.

         19                 Brooklyn, NY 11215

         20

         21

         22  Written Testimony Of:

         23  Richard F. Cazja, Esq.

         24  Chairman of the Board

         25  American Hear Association
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          2

          3                 Good morning, Chairwoman Quinn,

          4  members of the Health Committee, and other

          5  distinguished guests. My name is Richard Czaja,

          6  Chairman of the Board for the American Heart

          7  Association in New York City and Executive Vice

          8  President and General Counsel at Stahl Real Estate

          9  Company. I would like to thank you for this

         10  opportunity to speak to you today on behalf of the

         11  American Heart Association to support Intro. 256.

         12                 The American Heart Association is a

         13  not-for-profit, voluntary health organization funded

         14  by private contributions. Our mission is to reduce

         15  disability and death from cardiovascular diseases

         16  and stroke. One in every five deaths due to heart

         17  disease is attributed to tobacco smoke and breathing

         18  other people's cigarette smoke makes non-smokers 82

         19  percent more likely to suffer a stroke.

         20                 When the Clean Indoor Air Law passed

         21  in 1995, one of the predictions was for chaos in

         22  enforcement. Anyone who dines out regularly in New

         23  York City, however, can tell you that compliance

         24  with the law is exemplary. The Health Department has

         25  done a superlative job, and both restaurants and
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          2  patrons have proven the law to be largely

          3  self-enforcing. But the law doesn't go far enough.

          4  There are currently loopholes that must be filled

          5  in.

          6                 One-thousand New Yorkers die each

          7  year from causes related to secondhand smoke. Over

          8  40,000 New Yorkers suffer from illnesses directly

          9  related to secondhand smoke, such as asthma and

         10  respiratory infection. Did you know that in the

         11  United States, more people die from secondhand smoke

         12  than from car accidents or illegal drugs?

         13                 The American Heart Association is

         14  concerned with the detrimental health effects of

         15  tobacco products, including smoking and

         16  environmental tobacco smoke.

         17                 You may hear arguments that it is a

         18  person's "right" to smoke. I believe that their

         19  argument is correct - until however, that person

         20  exposes another to secondhand smoke. A person's

         21  actions cannot and should not impede another's right

         22  to remain healthy. I have a "right" to swing my arms

         23  wildly, but once I hit someone, I have then

         24  infringed on his or her rights.

         25                 Wait staff, cooks, and bartenders
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          2  have the highest level of exposure to secondhand

          3  smoke of any occupational group. Restaurant

          4  employees are exposed to levels of secondhand smoke

          5  that are up to two times higher than people who work

          6  in offices.

          7                 Bartenders are at an even greater

          8  risk, with exposure levels four to six times higher.

          9                 In an eight-hour shift, bartenders

         10  inhale the same amount of disease-causing chemicals

         11  from secondhand smoke as if they smoked more than

         12  half a pack of cigarettes themselves! Breathing in

         13  other people's cigarette smoke makes non-smokers 82

         14  percent more likely to suffer a stroke, and even

         15  occasional exposure to secondhand smoke increases

         16  the risk of developing heart disease by 58 percent.

         17                 With a well-padded budget, the

         18  tobacco industry spends millions of dollars each

         19  year on lobbying, public relations and marketing.

         20  All this to glamorize deadly products that kill

         21  hundreds of thousands of people a year, addict 3,000

         22  children a day and cost states millions in

         23  preventable medical costs.

         24                 Cigarette smoke is the most important

         25  preventable cause of premature death in this
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          2  country. According to the World Health Organization,

          3  global mortality from tobacco use is projected to

          4  rise from 3 million deaths in 1990 to 10 million in

          5  2030.

          6                 Another very important reason to vote

          7  affirmatively for intro. 256 is because clean indoor

          8  air is not only good for health but it is good for

          9  business as well.

         10                 Back in 1995 when smoking in

         11  restaurants of more than 35 seats was limited to the

         12  restaurant's bar, it did not prevent the City from

         13  experiencing an unprecedented boom in the

         14  restaurant, bar and hotel business and a

         15  comprehensive smoke-free workplace law will not hurt

         16  business either.

         17                 In several reports tabulating the

         18  receipts in counties where smoke-free ordinances

         19  were in effect, all the counties reported an

         20  increase in revenue.

         21                 The overwhelming majority of people

         22  in New York City have consistently reported in

         23  surveys that they do not like to breathe smoke from

         24  other people's cigarettes. In New York City where

         25  eight out of ten adults do not smoke, market
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          2  research shows that by a 2 to 1 margin, people would

          3  eat out more often if they could eat in a smoke-free

          4  environment.

          5                 The extension of the Clean Indoor Air

          6  Act is a singular and unique opportunity to protect

          7  families and to save lives. Make no mistake,

          8  secondhand smoke kills.

          9                 Thank you for your time.

         10

         11

         12  Written Testimony Of:

         13  Dr. Richard Stein

         14  NYC Board Member

         15  American Heart Association

         16  Chief Cardiologist for the Brooklyn Hospital

         17

         18                 Good morning. My name is Dr. Richard

         19  Stein, New York City Board member for the American

         20  Heart Association in New York City and I am the

         21  Chief Cardiologist for the Brooklyn Hospital.

         22                 I would like to thank you for the

         23  opportunity to speak on behalf of the American Heart

         24  Association in support of Intro. 256.

         25                 Before I begin, I must share with you
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          2  a brief history of the American Heart Association

          3  and vital role it plays in the fight against

          4  cardiovascular diseases and stroke. We are a

          5  national, not-for-profit, volunteer driven

          6  organization funded by private contributions and we

          7  are fortunate to have a committed and united network

          8  of more than 22.5 million volunteers and supporters

          9  nationwide.

         10                 We are the largest voluntary health

         11  organization working towards reducing disability and

         12  death from cardiovascular disease - the nation's

         13  number one killer in both men and women.

         14                 As a testament to our desire to

         15  achieve our mission, we have set an aggressive

         16  impact goal of reducing coronary heart disease,

         17  stroke and risk by 25 percent by the Year 2010.

         18                 One of the ways the American Heart

         19  Association works to accomplish our mission is by

         20  forging strong working relationships with

         21  legislators at every level of government.

         22                 We have assumed leadership positions

         23  on issues as diverse as physical activity, obesity,

         24  acute care issues and, of course, tobacco control.

         25                 In New York City, the American Heart
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          2  Association is an executive partner in the Coalition

          3  for a Smoke Free City whose sole mission is to

          4  prevent the unnecessary loss of more than 10,000 New

          5  Yorkers each year due to tobacco use or to the

          6  exposure to secondhand smoke.

          7                 On August 12, 2002, Mayor Bloomberg,

          8  Health Commissioner Frieden and several members of

          9  the New York City Council announced to the world

         10  that they were intent on protecting all New Yorkers

         11  from the toxic fumes of secondhand smoke. Not only

         12  did we, as an organization, applaud this bold move,

         13  but also personally, as a cardiologist, I wanted to

         14  know what I could do to make sure this proposal

         15  becomes law.

         16                 I believe that this legislation is

         17  not only sound public health policy but is one of

         18  the best ways to reduce the incidence of stroke and

         19  cardiovascular diseases. I am here today to support

         20  our progressive administration and to urge the

         21  entire New York City Council to take the lead on

         22  protecting all New Yorkers from the exposure to

         23  secondhand smoke.

         24                 Secondhand smoke has long been

         25  associated with heart disease because of tobacco
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          2  smoke's overall effect on the cardiovascular system.

          3                 Studies show that the inhalation of

          4  tobacco smoke causes blood vessels to contract,

          5  limits blood flow throughout the body, reduces a

          6  person's oxygen supply, damages arteries, lowers the

          7  "good" HDL cholesterol and increases the risk of

          8  clotting.

          9                 Those exposed o secondhand smoke are

         10  82 percent more likely to suffer a stroke and even

         11  occasional exposure to secondhand smoke increases

         12  the risk of developing heart disease by 58 percent.

         13  Unfortunately, the effects of secondhand smoke

         14  results in a number of grim statistics,

         15  specifically, the death toll of more than 40,000

         16  cardiovascular deaths each year.

         17                 In New York City alone, approximately

         18  1,000 lives are claimed by the exposure to

         19  secondhand smoke. Secondhand smoke contains more

         20  than 4,000 chemicals, more than 40 of which have

         21  been proven to cause cancer.

         22                 The United States Environmental

         23  Protection Agency has classified secondhand smoke as

         24  a Group A carcinogen. This places tobacco smoke in

         25  the same deadly class as arsenic, asbestos, radon
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          2  and benzene.

          3                 Additionally, both the U.S. Surgeon

          4  General and the National Institute of Occupational

          5  Safety and Health have both found that the simple

          6  separation of smokers and non-smokers in the

          7  workplace or in public places does not provide

          8  adequate protection for non-smokers. Or, let me use

          9  an analogy: the air we breathe in a restaurant can

         10  best be compared to water in a swimming pool; just

         11  as there is no way to have chlorinated and

         12  non-chlorinated sections of a pool, we all end up

         13  having to inhale deadly secondhand smoke while

         14  dining in, or working in a restaurant.

         15                 A study reported in a January '98

         16  issue of the Journal of the American Medical

         17  Association reported that the effects of secondhand

         18  smoke on heart disease are dramatic and appear to be

         19  cumulative and irreversible.

         20                 The American Heart Association

         21  regards the public's protection from secondhand

         22  smoke hazards an integral part of a comprehensive

         23  tobacco control policy.

         24                 The very fact that the exposure

         25  appears to be irreversible and accelerates vascular
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          2  disease associated with the development of high

          3  blood pressure and diabetes indicates the

          4  seriousness of the risk. Reducing secondhand smoke

          5  must be a high priority in preventing these

          6  diseases.

          7                 The American Heart Association

          8  believes that no one should be exposed to secondhand

          9  smoke to dine or work in our great City.

         10                 The scientific evidence is argument

         11  enough to pass Intro. 256. As legislators, you must

         12  respond to the overwhelming data documenting the

         13  detrimental health effects of secondhand smoke and

         14  protect the workers, residents and visitors of our

         15  City.

         16                 Thank you for your time and

         17  consideration.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 7:58 p.m.)

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 10th day of October 2002.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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